
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING  
January 9, 2024 

7:00 P.M. BPU Board Room 
45 Monroe St. Hillsdale, MI 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA WITH ANY ADDITIONS 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS-Public comment shall be 
limited to no more than three minutes. Please state your name for the record. 

IV. PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES 
A. Regular Meeting of December 12, 2023 

V. REVIEW OF UTILITY BILLS/FINANCIALS: 
A. December  2023 bills in the amount of $1,019,360.44 
B. November 2023 Finance Report 

VI. ACTION ITEMS 
A. Tetra Tech – Hillsdale College Sanitary Sewer Study  
B. John Deere Backhoe Service Agreement 
C. HomeServe USA Corporation Service Line Agreement 

VII. DEPARTMENT AND PROJECT REPORTS 
A. Water & Wastewater  
B. Electric Utility  

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
A.     Emergency On-Call Service Holiday City  
B.     Hart Solar and Quantum Energy Verbal Update  

IX. OPPORTUNITY FOR GENERAL PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

X. BOARD MEMBER ROUNDTABLE 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 



Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting 

December 12, 2023

The regular Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities meeting was called to order at the BPU Offices, 
45 Monroe Street, Hillsdale, Michigan, at 7:00 p.m. by Mr. Bob Batt, President of the Board. 

Board Members Present: Mr. Bob Batt—President  
Mr. Pete Becker 
Mr. Eric Potes  

Board Member Absent:  Mr. Jeremiah Hodshire  
Mr. Phil McDowell 

Others Present: David Mackie, BPU Director; Brandon Janes, Technical Services; Jake Hammel, 
Electric Superintendent; Kelly LoPresto, BPU Office Manager.  Karen Lancaster via telephone.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA WITH ANY ADDITIONS  
Mr. Potes, supported by Mr. Becker, moved to approve the agenda as presented. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote. 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
No public comments.  

PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES 
Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved to approve and place on file the Regular Meeting 
Minutes of November 14, 2023. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 

REVIEW OF UTILITY BILLS/FINANCIALS 
Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved to approve and pay the November 2023 bills in the 
amount of $1,418,416.69 taking out $2,211,053.24. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 

Ms. Lancaster provided a brief overview of the October 2023 Finance Report.  
Mr. Potes, supported by Mr. Becker, moved to approve and place on file the November 2023 
Finance Report. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 

Ms. Lancaster provided a brief overview of the BPU Audit.   
Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved to receive and file the audit as presented.  Motion 
carried unanimously by voice vote.  



ACTION ITEMS 

A. Replace Safety Equipment  

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY: Jake Hammel, Director of Electric  

Safety Coordinator, Ken Keasal, applied for a grant through MIOSHA to update all of our lifting 
equipment, and some of our electrical cover ups.  He has received a grant in the amount of 
$5000.00 toward this replacement.  

Our existing lifting equipment is worn or dated past its safe usable life, and we are short on 
quantities of our blankets and clips.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff supports award by the Board for the safety equipment replacement to Power Line Supply in 
the amount of $12,678.75 (minus $5000.00).   

Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved to award the contract to Power Line Supply for the 
safety equipment in the amount of $12,678.75 (minus $5000.00)       

B. Transmission Line Clearance (West)  

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY: Kaleb Dorweiler, City Forester   

Hillsdale City Forester Kaleb Dorweiler solicited bids from vegetation management companies 
for clearance of approximately 7 miles of transmission line running from the Moore Rd substation 
west to the power plant. 

The project consists of vegetation clearance work to 100’ width (50 ft. each side).  Tree removal, 
trimming, and herbicide application to cut stumps for prevention of regrowth is required.  Trees 
along outer boundaries will be trimmed to maintain a clear space around the line for at least a 3-
year period. A total of 7 bids were received.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff supports award by the Board for west transmission line clearance to Asplundh Tree Expert 
LLC in the amount of $188,070.   

Mr. Potes, supported by Mr. Becker, moved to award the contract to Asplundh Tree Expert LLC 
for the west transmission line clearance in the amount of $188,070. Motion carried unanimously 
by voice. 



C.  Industrial Sub Switchgear 

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY:  Jake Hammel, Director of Electric 

This is the second major portion of the Industrial Substation upgrade.  This will allow us to get 
power to our distribution feeders from the 30 MVa transformer we awarded earlier this year, and 
also provide us with the proper connection of the Power Secure unit at this location. The 
Engineer’s estimate was $700,000, which did not include an additional breaker for the Power 
Secure unit.  We received two bids for the switchgear, and also obtained an additional estimate 
for the commissioning.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff supports award by the Board for the Industrial Substation Switchgear, spare parts, and 
commissioning (with extended warranty) to Siemens Industry Inc. in the amount of $839,650.   

Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved award to Siemens Industry Inc. in the amount of 
$839,650 for the Industrial Substation Switchgear. Motion carried unanimously by voice. 

D. EcoSmart Choice Program  

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY: David Mackie, BPU Director   

As discussed at the November BPU Board meeting, EcoSmart Choice allows AMP members to 
offer a voluntary green energy pricing program to their customers at no cost to the local utility.  
The program is available to residential, commercial and industrial customers to offset (25%, 50%, 
75% or 100%) of their electric usage with green energy. Attached is the resolution approving 
participation in the EcoSmart Choice program and Contract with AMP for program services. The 
resolution and contract need to be approved by the City Council. Currently there are 14 AMP 
member communities participating in the program including Coldwater, MI. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve recommending to City Council the EcoSmart Choice program resolution and Contract 
with AMP.

Mr. Potes, supported by Mr. Batt, moved to recommend to City Council the EcoSmart Choice 
program resolution and Contract with AMP.  Motion carried unanimously by voice. 



E. BPU Strategic Plan 2023-2026 

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY: David Mackie, BPU Director   

BPU board members and staff participated in six strategic planning workshop webinars with other 
Electric Companies and Mr. Steve VanderMeer, Executive Consultant coordinated through the 
Michigan Municipal Electric Association.    

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve recommending the Hillsdale BPU Strategic Plan 2023-2026 as presented.  

Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved approve the Hillsdale BPU Strategic Plan 2023-
2026 as presented.  Motion carried unanimously by voice. 

F. Resolution to Amend the Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities Customer Service, Electric, 
Water, and Sewer Department Rules and Regulations  

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY: David Mackie, BPU Director   

As directed by the Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities, a review of the Rules and Regulations has 
been completed.  Staff recognized some changes to the rules that were needed.  2019 was the last 
update to the rules and regulations.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve recommending to City Council the Rules & Regulations as amended and resolution.  

Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved to recommend to City Council the Rules & 
Regulations as amended and the resolution.   Motion carried unanimously by voice. 

DEPARTMENT AND PROJECT REPORTS 
Department reports included in the meeting packet for board member review.   

MISCELLANEOUS 
A. Michigan PowerSecure BTM Construction Update  
B. Economic Development Partnership of Hillsdale County Director Report  

OPPORTUNITY FOR GENERAL PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
No public comment.  



BOARD MEMBER ROUNDTABLE 

ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Becker, supported by Mr. Potes, moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:29 p.m. The motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote. 

Minutes submitted by Kelly LoPresto, BPU Office Manager ______________________________ 



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 1/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 582 ELECTRIC FUND
Dept 000.000 

107618563.80 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYPOLE TOP PIN582-000.000-110.000
1076181,987.06 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYARM PIN582-000.000-110.000
107618204.92 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYTERMINATOR ELBOW - 15KV582-000.000-110.000
107618517.87 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYGUY ATTACHMENTS AGX-5582-000.000-110.000
1076187,620.40 CONDUIT INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYCONDUIT - 2" PVC SCHEDULE 4582-000.000-110.000
107695141.00 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYCONNECTOR 3/0 TO 350 COPPER582-000.000-110.000
1076951,412.36 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLY40 W LED BLVD FIXTURE582-000.000-110.000
1076951,520.70 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYSMALL LED582-000.000-110.000
107695146.37 INVENTORYPOWERLINE  SUPPLYTERMINATOR ELBOW - 15KV582-000.000-110.000
1077023,488.00 PHASE 1 UPGRADE ENG AND DESIGN SERVICESSSOE, INC.PHASE 1 UPGRADE ENG AND DESIGN SERVICES582-000.000-158.000-191006
1076363,487.45 PADMOUNT TRANSFORMERS FOR INVENTORYT & R ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY INC4160/13200 50 KVA582-000.000-158.000-201009
107550158.10 UB refund for account: 011577BETHEL, DAVID E4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
10755611.55 UB refund for account: 010408BURNS, CAITLIN P4ENBK1582-000.000-202.100
107563108.00 UB refund for account: 023934CUNNINGHAM, CHARLES E4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
107569109.00 UB refund for account: 018450DETTLOFF, DEBBYSUE A4ENBK1582-000.000-202.100
107580246.72 UB refund for account: 019758HALL, JUNE E4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
107591173.00 UB refund for account: 030238KNOX, NICHOLAS J4ENBK1582-000.000-202.100
107606131.00 UB refund for account: 021229MYERS, ALEXIS4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
107621279.00 UB refund for account: 010800PRICE, SHERIE K4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
10762823.00 UB refund for account: 021380SCHMITT, MICHAEL F4ENBK1582-000.000-202.100
10763586.19 UB refund for account: 013900STUMP, TYLER R4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
10765124.00 UB refund for account: 020446WHEELER, ROBERT P4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
107679851.58 UB refund for account: 305626HILLSDALE COUNTY ISD4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
10768096.68 UB refund for account: 019015ISABELL, DOUGLAS W4ENBK1582-000.000-202.100
10769942.00 UB refund for account: 025757SCHULTZ, HANNAH M4CCH  582-000.000-202.100
10770324.00 UB refund for account: 013512ST ANTHONY'S CEMETARY6CCH  582-000.000-202.100
1075602,682.90 OPERATION ROUND-UP - NOVEMBER 2023COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCYOPERATION ROUND-UP - NOVEMBER 2023582-000.000-249.100
1075955,344.99 LIEAF-6099 NOVEMBER 2023 P.A. 95LARA - MI PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIONLIEAF-6099 NOVEMBER 2023 P.A. 95582-000.000-249.100

63528,273.52 SALES TAX - NOVEMBER 2023STATE OF MICHIGANSALES TAX - NOVEMBER 2023582-000.000-263.000
635(178.37)SALES TAX - NOVEMBER 2023STATE OF MICHIGANSALES TAX - NOVEMBER 2023582-000.000-692.200

59,576.79 Total For Dept 000.000 

Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
73387.33 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - ELECTRIC582-175.000-715.000
733124.52 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - ELECTRIC582-175.000-715.000
733582.30 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - ELECTRIC582-175.000-715.000
73617,949.14 HEALTH INSURANCE - DEC 2023PLANSOURCE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATIONHEALTH INSURANCE - ELECTRIC582-175.000-715.000
73822.76 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYLIFE INSURANCE - ELECTRIC582-175.000-715.000
738191.63 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYLIFE INSURANCE - ELECTRIC582-175.000-715.000
73518,891.55 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS - 300101MERSRETIREMENT582-175.000-716.000
73839.25 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYDISABILITY INSURANCE - ELECTRIC582-175.000-721.000
738323.41 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYDISABILITY INSURANCE - ELECTRIC582-175.000-721.000

10754253.20 SPOONS,PLATES,FORKS,CUPSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCSPOONS,PLATES,FORKS,CUPS582-175.000-726.000
10754271.09 SUPPLIES - 45 MONROE STREETAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCSUPPLIES - 45 MONROE STREET582-175.000-726.000
107564103.38 COPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023582-175.000-726.000
10759287.72 KITCHEN ROLL TOWEL, T. PAPER, VEHICLE WASH & WAXKSS ENTERPRISESKITCHEN ROLL TOWEL, T. PAPER, VEHICLE WA582-175.000-726.000
10762710.50 WATER FOR OFFICE - 45 MONROE STRUPERT'S CULLIGANWATER - OFFICE582-175.000-726.000
10766420.02 PLASTIC FORKSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCPLASTIC FORKS582-175.000-726.000
1076649.98 MONEY MARKER PENS/DETECTS FAKE COUNTERFIT BILLSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCMONEY MARKER PENS/DETECTS FAKE COUNTERFI582-175.000-726.000
10767267.90 COPY PAPER - 45 MONROE STREETCURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPY PAPER - 45 MONROE STREET582-175.000-726.000
107540100.00 TELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREETACD.NETTELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREET582-175.000-801.000
107564133.98 COPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023582-175.000-801.000



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 2/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 582 ELECTRIC FUND
Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

1075661,252.78 PRINTING/POSTAGE AND HANDLING OF BILLSDELAWARE SYSTEMSPRINTING/POSTAGE AND HANDLING OF BILLS582-175.000-801.000
107573130.00 BPU CLEANING FOR NOVEMBER 2023EAST 2 WEST ENTERPRISES, INCBPU CLEANING FOR NOVEMBER 2023582-175.000-801.000
10757512.50 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM-DEC 2023ERIC POTESBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM582-175.000-801.000
10761241.67 COMMISSION PAID FOR COLLECTIONS NOV 2023ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.COMMISSION PAID FOR COLLECTIONS NOV 2023582-175.000-801.000
10761243.12 UTILITY EXCHANGE REPORT/WEB ACCESS FEEONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.UTILITY EXCHANGE REPORT/WEB ACCESS FEE582-175.000-801.000
10761512.50 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM- DEC 2023PETER MICHAEL BECKERBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM582-175.000-801.000
10762512.50 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM - DEC. 2023ROBERT J BATTBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM582-175.000-801.000
107655625.00 AUDIT SERVICES FOR FYE 2023YEO & YEO PCAUDIT SERVICES FOR FYE 2023582-175.000-801.000
1077062,100.55 ACCOUNTING SERVICES - NOV 2023THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLCACCOUNTING SERVICES - NOV 2023582-175.000-801.000

634177.49 CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES - NOV 2023INVOICE CLOUDCREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES - NOV 2023582-175.000-801.000
99.96 24" MONITORS HDMI/DPAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC24" MONITORS HDMI/DP582-175.000-802.000

107629270.00 ANNUAL VEEAM BACKUP LICENSINGSONIT SYSTEMS, LLCANNUAL VEEAM BACKUP LICENSING582-175.000-802.000
107629155.26 SONIT NET ADMIN NOVEMBER 2023SONIT SYSTEMS, LLCSONIT NET ADMIN NOVEMBER 2023582-175.000-802.000
107644350.00 MILSOFT DISSPATCH LICENSE AND UNPLUGGED 11-23MILSOFTMILSOFT DISSPATCH LICENSE AND UNPLUGGED 582-175.000-802.000
107644251.26 IVR POOLED MONTHLY OUTAGE SUBSCRIPTION 11-23MILSOFTIVR POOLED MONTHLY OUTAGE SUBSCRIPTION582-175.000-802.000
10770181.81 VIPRE EMAIL AND TRENDMICRO RECUR (DEC)SONIT SYSTEMS, LLCVIPRE EMAIL AND TRENDMICRO RECUR (DEC)582-175.000-802.000

7494.11 B. JANES CREDIT CARDCARD SERVICES CENTERAMAZON WEB SERVICES582-175.000-802.000
10754024.25 TELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREETACD.NETTELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREET582-175.000-850.000
107540145.47 TELEPHONE - POWER PLANT ACD.NETTELEPHONE - POWER PLANT 582-175.000-850.000
10755528.00 ETHERFAX DECEMBER 2023BSB COMMUNICATIONS INCETHERFAX DECEMBER 2023582-175.000-850.000
107645592.03 MONTHLY VERIZON BILL - DEC 23VERIZON WIRELESSMONTHLY VERIZON BILL - DEC 23582-175.000-850.000
107600125.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION - NOVEMBER 2023MCKIBBIN MEDIA GROUP, INC.COMMUNITY PROMOTION - NOVEMBER 2023582-175.000-880.000
10770027.50 WINTER MICHIGAN PARENT -DEC 2023SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINEWINTER MICHIGAN PARENT -DEC 2023582-175.000-880.000
10770027.50 COMMUINITY PROMOTION- JAN/FEB 2024SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINECOMMUINITY PROMOTION- JAN/FEB 2024582-175.000-880.000

72664.79 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 37 MONROEMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 37 MONROE582-175.000-920.400
730152.29 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 45 MONROE STMICH GAS UTILITIES503214966 - 45 MONROE582-175.000-920.400
73923.60 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 37 MONROE GEN SETMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 37 MONROE582-175.000-920.400

107546775.00 INVOICE FOR MPSI FALL SESSION - J. HAMMEL APWA MICHIGAN CHAPTER - MPSIINVOICE FOR MPSI FALL SESSION - J. HAMME582-175.000-956.000
749234.07 J. HAMMEL CREDIT CARDCARD SERVICES CENTERFUEL - CAT GENERATOR TOUR582-175.000-956.200

46,709.67 Total For Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dept 543.000 PRODUCTION
10757711.98 1-1/2"X15' RATCHET TIEDOWNFAMILY FARM & HOME1-1/2"X15' RATCHET TIEDOWN582-543.000-726.000
10757919.56 SOLVENT CEMENT KIT/ADAPTERS/BUSHING GELZER HJ & SON INCSOLVENT CEMENT KIT/ADAPTERS/BUSHING 582-543.000-726.000
1075826.90 WATER DELIVERY SERVICE-201 WATERWORKS DRHEFFERNAN SOFT WATER SERVICEWATER DELIVERY SERVICE-201 WATERWORKS DR582-543.000-726.000
107588269.00 M18 F UEL 6 GALLON WET/DRY VACUUMJONESVILLE LUMBERM18 F UEL 6 GALLON WET/DRY VACUUM582-543.000-726.000
10767712.00 WATER COOLER RENTAL - 201 WATERWORKS HEFFERNAN SOFT WATER SERVICEWATER COOLER RENTAL - 201 WATERWORKS 582-543.000-726.000
1076776.90 WATER DELIVERY SERVICE-201 WATERWORKS HEFFERNAN SOFT WATER SERVICEWATER DELIVERY SERVICE-201 WATERWORKS 582-543.000-726.000

750704,183.53 MSCPA MEMBER POWER BILLING - NOV 2023MICHIGAN SOUTH CENTRAL POWER AGENCYMSCPA MEMBER POWER BILLING - NOV 2023582-543.000-739.000
1076875,503.90 DRUM/BARRELSMERLE BOES, INC.DRUM/BARRELS582-543.000-740.000

74521.03 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 201 WATERWORKS XXMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 201 WATERWORKS XX - ENGINES582-543.000-740.300
74521.03 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 201 WATERWORKS XXMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 201 WATERWORKS XX - ENGINES582-543.000-740.400

107666110.00 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INCENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 582-543.000-801.000
7441,936.67 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 201 WATERWORKSMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 201 WATERWORKS - PP582-543.000-920.400

107665195.98 25A 120V CONTACTOR AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC25A 120V CONTACTOR 582-543.000-930.000
10757925.77 PLUG TAP/FLAP DISCGELZER HJ & SON INCREPAIRS & MAINT. - ENGINE #5582-543.000-930.050
10757962.98 1 GAL CAL/LIME/RST REMOVER/1 GAL TANK SPRAYERGELZER HJ & SON INC1 GAL CAL/LIME/RST REMOVER/1 GAL TANK SP582-543.000-930.050
1076148.60 2 COURSE ROLO PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE2 COURSE ROLO 582-543.000-930.050
107641648.00 SERVICES RENDER3ED AT POWERHOUSE THROUGH 11/6/2023UIS SCADA, INC.REPAIRS & MAINT. - ENGINE #5582-543.000-930.050
107641648.00 SERVICES RENDER3ED AT POWERHOUSE THROUGH 11/6/2023UIS SCADA, INC.REPAIRS & MAINT. - ENGINE #6582-543.000-930.060
10769439.53 HEAT SHIELD PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVEREPAIRS & MAINT. - ENGINE #6582-543.000-930.060

713,731.36 Total For Dept 543.000 PRODUCTION



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 3/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 582 ELECTRIC FUND
Dept 544.000 DISTRIBUTION

10757923.79 9-3/4" LEFT CUT SNIPGELZER HJ & SON INC9-3/4" LEFT CUT SNIP582-544.000-726.800
1075799.39 GLOW ORANGE PAINT PENGELZER HJ & SON INCGLOW ORANGE PAINT PEN582-544.000-726.800
10757912.87 BULK GREEN CUBE TAPGELZER HJ & SON INCBULK GREEN CUBE TAP582-544.000-726.800
1075829.20 WATER DELIVERY SERVICE-201 WATERWORKS HEFFERNAN SOFT WATER SERVICEWATER DELIVERY SERVICE-201 WATERWORKS 582-544.000-726.800
107618446.15 PRIMARY PEDESTAL MARKERPOWERLINE  SUPPLYPRIMARY PEDESTAL MARKERS582-544.000-726.800
107669214.66 COM2374 39" ADJUSTABLE BANDING STRAPSBRONNER'S CHRISTMAS WONDERLANDCOM2374 39" ADJUSTABLE BANDING STRAPS582-544.000-726.800
10767611.66 PLASTIC BUSHING/RGD LOCKNUT GELZER HJ & SON INCPLASTIC BUSHING/RGD LOCKNUT 582-544.000-726.800
1076768.37 METAL WHEELGELZER HJ & SON INCMETAL WHEEL582-544.000-726.800
107676(3.20)FASTENERS & ANCHORS GELZER HJ & SON INCFASTENERS & ANCHORS 582-544.000-726.800
10771221.00 OXYGEN WHITE'S WELDING SERVICEOXYGEN 582-544.000-726.800

251.14 CABLES 3RD FLOOR CH - LADDER ELEC DEPTAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCLADDER - 6FT582-544.000-730.000
107542394.99 MILWAUKEE IMPACT WRENCH AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCMILWAUKEE IMPACT WRENCH 582-544.000-730.000
10761434.98 HD EXTEND LIFE ANTIFPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVEHD EXTEND LIFE ANTIF582-544.000-730.000
10761420.69 DEF FLUID 2.5 GALPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVEDEF FLUID 2.5 GAL582-544.000-730.000
1076182,020.00 POLE TAMPPOWERLINE  SUPPLYPOLE TAMP H4802-1 582-544.000-730.000
107639202.03 SENSOR, 5 GALLON QLS 1%TRI COUNTY INT'L TRUCK INCSENSOR, 5 GALLON QLS 1%582-544.000-730.000
10765225.00 WELD/REPAIR CONE HOLDERWHITE'S WELDING SERVICEWELD/REPAIR CONE HOLDER582-544.000-730.000
10769450.68 RLEAYSPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVERLEAYS582-544.000-730.000
10769415.55 CIRCUIT TESTER, MINI FUSEPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVECIRCUIT TESTER, MINI FUSE582-544.000-730.000
1076952,304.00  CLIMBING GEAR AND HARNESSESPOWERLINE  SUPPLYBELT ADJUSTABLE BUCK LARGE582-544.000-730.000
107695148.00  CLIMBING GEAR AND HARNESSESPOWERLINE  SUPPLYGAFF GAURD 582-544.000-730.000
107695517.00 ELBOW PULLER URDPOWERLINE  SUPPLYPULLER ELBOW 6FT 5327-1582-544.000-730.000
107695162.00 BLANKET CLAMPSPOWERLINE  SUPPLYRUBBER BLANKET CLAMPS582-544.000-730.000
107695535.00  CLIMBING GEAR AND HARNESSESPOWERLINE  SUPPLYHARNESS JOSH 603A8Q25-XL582-544.000-730.000
1076591,596.71 FUEL & LUBRICANTS FOR NOVEMBER 2023WATKINS OIL COMPANYFUEL & LUBRICANTS FOR NOVEMBER 2023582-544.000-740.000
107619206.00 CLOTHING - B. JOHNSON POWERS CLOTHING, INC.CLOTHING - B. JOHNSON 582-544.000-742.000
107616825.00 REPLACE CONTROL TRANSFORMER ON FREIGHT ELEVATORPOSITIVE ELECTRIC LLCREPLACE CONTROL TRANSFORMER ON FREIGHT E582-544.000-801.000
1076171,550.00 GRANT ASSISTANCE FOR MMEA EGLE 40101POWER SYSTEM ENGINEERING, INC.GRANT ASSISTANCE FOR MMEA EGLE 40101582-544.000-801.000
107632150.00 NPDES ANNUAL PERMIT FEE, 2024 MIG250452, HILLSDALE POWER PLANTSTATE OF MICHIGAN EGLENPDES ANNUAL PERMIT FEE, 2024 MIG250452,582-544.000-801.000
10765614.44 16-14GA #8 SPADE TERM AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC16-14GA #8 SPADE TERM 582-544.000-930.000
10765664.04 4-14AWG INSLU-TAP CONNAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC4-14AWG INSLU-TAP CONN582-544.000-930.000
10765647.02 15A 125V YELLOW PLASTIC/15A 125V 2P 3W YELLOW AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC15A 125V YELLOW PLASTIC/15A 125V 2P 3W Y582-544.000-930.000
10766556.90 CONDUIT GASKET/CONDULET COVER/LOCKNUT/BUSHING/SCREWDRIVERAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLCCONDUIT GASKET/CONDULET COVER/LOCKNUT/BU582-544.000-930.000
107665132.66 14 YELLOW THHN ON 500'/14GA BROWN THHN/14 GA WHITE THHN/7.5 50LB BLACK TIE BAGAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC14 YELLOW THHN ON 500'/14GA BROWN THHN/1582-544.000-930.000
10766513.64 2/1 1/2 BLK BUSH/1 CLAMP ON W.H./3/4 TO 1/2" REDUCING/1 TO 3/4"REDUCINGAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC2/1 1/2 BLK BUSH/1 CLAMP ON W.H./3/4 TO 582-544.000-930.000
10766578.57 CLAMP/GALV PLUG/GALV BUSHING/SPOOL NYLONAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLCCLAMP/GALV PLUG/GALV BUSHING/SPOOL NYLON582-544.000-930.000
10766511.32 BIG GRAY WIRE NUTS SELLAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLCBIG GRAY WIRE NUTS SELL582-544.000-930.000
107665150.00 12GA, 2/C W/GRN UF CABLEAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC12GA, 2/C W/GRN UF CABLE582-544.000-930.000
1076658.95 11.1 50LB BLK TIE (100/BAGS)AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC11.1 50LB BLK TIE (100/BAGS)582-544.000-930.000
10766530.55 CONDUIT/COUPLING/PVC STRAPAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLCCONDUIT/COUPLING/PVC STRAP582-544.000-930.000
10766545.39 CONDUIT GASKET/CONDULET COVER/MALLABLE IRONAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLCCONDUIT GASKET/CONDULET COVER/MALLABLE I582-544.000-930.000
10767625.36 RED PEPPER PAINT PEN/MASKING TAPE/STENCILSGELZER HJ & SON INCRED PEPPER PAINT PEN/MASKING TAPE/STENCI582-544.000-930.000
10767617.99 SAWZALL BLADE GELZER HJ & SON INCSAWZALL BLADE 582-544.000-930.000
1076768.99 METAL SCREWSGELZER HJ & SON INCMETAL SCREWS582-544.000-930.000
10768618.13 UPS PACKAGE MARKET HOUSEUPS PACKAGE 582-544.000-930.000

12,486.61 Total For Dept 544.000 DISTRIBUTION

832,504.43 Total For Fund 582 ELECTRIC FUND

Fund 590 SEWER FUND
Dept 000.000 

10768527,612.50 WATER/SEWER DUMP TRUCK AS APPROVED BY BOARD/COUNCILLUNGHAMER FORD OF OWOSSO, LLCF550 CHASSIS ONLY - 1/2 WATER590-000.000-158.000-213018
10770715,367.50 DUMP BOX FOR F550 CHASSISTRUCK & TRAILER SPECIALTIESDUMP BODY INSTALLATION- 1/2 WATER590-000.000-158.000-213018



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 4/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 590 SEWER FUND
Dept 000.000 

107637840.00 CDBG SANITARY LIFT STATION DESIGNTETRA TECH, INCCDBG SANITARY LIFT STATION DESIGN590-000.000-158.000-215006
1075459,673.95 AERATOR GEARBOX 1 OF 2- APPROVED BY BOARD/COUNCILAPPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIESGEARBOX SERIAL # 9TEWQBCU4590-000.000-158.000-215037
1075459,673.96 AERATOR GEARBOX 2 OF 2- APPROVED BY BOARD/COUNCILAPPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIESGEARBOX SER # CTKT5VVMR590-000.000-158.000-215038
10755067.30 UB refund for account: 011577BETHEL, DAVID ESCCH  590-000.000-202.100
1075566.73 UB refund for account: 010408BURNS, CAITLIN PSBK1  590-000.000-202.100
107679706.71 UB refund for account: 305626HILLSDALE COUNTY ISDSCCH  590-000.000-202.100

63,948.65 Total For Dept 000.000 

Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
73343.68 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - SEWER590-175.000-715.000
733284.20 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - SEWER590-175.000-715.000
7338.38 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - SEWER590-175.000-715.000
7367,243.70 HEALTH INSURANCE - DEC 2023PLANSOURCE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATIONHEALTH INSURANCE - SEWER590-175.000-715.000
73811.35 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYLIFE INSURANCE - SEWER590-175.000-715.000
73876.35 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYLIFE INSURANCE - SEWER590-175.000-715.000
7353,619.28 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS - 300101MERSRETIREMENT590-175.000-716.000
73819.61 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYDISABILITY INSURANCE - SEWER590-175.000-721.000
738106.25 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYDISABILITY INSURANCE - SEWER590-175.000-721.000

10754226.59 SPOONS,PLATES,FORKS,CUPSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCSPOONS,PLATES,FORKS,CUPS590-175.000-726.000
10754235.54 SUPPLIES - 45 MONROE STREETAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCSUPPLIES - 45 MONROE STREET590-175.000-726.000
10759243.86 KITCHEN ROLL TOWEL, T. PAPER, VEHICLE WASH & WAXKSS ENTERPRISESKITCHEN ROLL TOWEL, T. PAPER, VEHICLE WA590-175.000-726.000
1076275.25 WATER FOR OFFICE - 45 MONROE STRUPERT'S CULLIGANWATER - OFFICE590-175.000-726.000
10766410.00 PLASTIC FORKSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCPLASTIC FORKS590-175.000-726.000
1076644.98 MONEY MARKER PENS/DETECTS FAKE COUNTERFIT BILLSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCMONEY MARKER PENS/DETECTS FAKE COUNTERFI590-175.000-726.000
10767233.95 COPY PAPER - 45 MONROE STREETCURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPY PAPER - 45 MONROE STREET590-175.000-726.000
10754050.00 TELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREETACD.NETTELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREET590-175.000-801.000
10756466.98 COPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023590-175.000-801.000
107566626.39 PRINTING/POSTAGE AND HANDLING OF BILLSDELAWARE SYSTEMSPRINTING/POSTAGE AND HANDLING OF BILLS590-175.000-801.000
10757365.00 BPU CLEANING FOR NOVEMBER 2023EAST 2 WEST ENTERPRISES, INCBPU CLEANING FOR NOVEMBER 2023590-175.000-801.000
1075756.25 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM-DEC 2023ERIC POTESBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM590-175.000-801.000
10761222.83 COMMISSION PAID FOR COLLECTIONS NOV 2023ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.COMMISSION PAID FOR COLLECTIONS NOV 2023590-175.000-801.000
10761221.56 UTILITY EXCHANGE REPORT/WEB ACCESS FEEONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.UTILITY EXCHANGE REPORT/WEB ACCESS FEE590-175.000-801.000
1076156.25 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM- DEC 2023PETER MICHAEL BECKERBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM590-175.000-801.000
1076256.25 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM - DEC. 2023ROBERT J BATTBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM590-175.000-801.000
107655312.50 AUDIT SERVICES FOR FYE 2023YEO & YEO PCAUDIT SERVICES FOR FYE 2023590-175.000-801.000
1077061,050.28 ACCOUNTING SERVICES - NOV 2023THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLCACCOUNTING SERVICES - NOV 2023590-175.000-801.000

63488.73 CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES - NOV 2023INVOICE CLOUDCREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES - NOV 2023590-175.000-801.000
49.99 24" MONITORS HDMI/DPAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC24" MONITORS HDMI/DP590-175.000-802.000

107629135.00 ANNUAL VEEAM BACKUP LICENSINGSONIT SYSTEMS, LLCANNUAL VEEAM BACKUP LICENSING590-175.000-802.000
10762977.62 SONIT NET ADMIN NOVEMBER 2023SONIT SYSTEMS, LLCSONIT NET ADMIN NOVEMBER 2023590-175.000-802.000
107644175.00 MILSOFT DISSPATCH LICENSE AND UNPLUGGED 11-23MILSOFTMILSOFT DISSPATCH LICENSE AND UNPLUGGED 590-175.000-802.000
107644125.62 IVR POOLED MONTHLY OUTAGE SUBSCRIPTION 11-23MILSOFTIVR POOLED MONTHLY OUTAGE SUBSCRIPTION590-175.000-802.000
10770140.91 VIPRE EMAIL AND TRENDMICRO RECUR (DEC)SONIT SYSTEMS, LLCVIPRE EMAIL AND TRENDMICRO RECUR (DEC)590-175.000-802.000
10754012.12 TELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREETACD.NETTELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREET590-175.000-850.000
10754096.98 TELEPHONE - WWTP-101 W GALLOWAYACD.NETTELEPHONE - WWTP-101 W GALLOWAY590-175.000-850.000
10755514.00 ETHERFAX DECEMBER 2023BSB COMMUNICATIONS INCETHERFAX DECEMBER 2023590-175.000-850.000
107645142.86 MONTHLY VERIZON BILL - DEC 23VERIZON WIRELESSMONTHLY VERIZON BILL - DEC 23590-175.000-850.000
10760062.50 COMMUNITY PROMOTION - NOVEMBER 2023MCKIBBIN MEDIA GROUP, INC.COMMUNITY PROMOTION - NOVEMBER 2023590-175.000-880.000
10770013.75 WINTER MICHIGAN PARENT -DEC 2023SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINEWINTER MICHIGAN PARENT -DEC 2023590-175.000-880.000
10770013.75 COMMUINITY PROMOTION- JAN/FEB 2024SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINECOMMUINITY PROMOTION- JAN/FEB 2024590-175.000-880.000

72632.39 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 37 MONROEMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 37 MONROE590-175.000-920.400
73076.15 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 45 MONROE STMICH GAS UTILITIES503214966 - 45 MONROE590-175.000-920.400



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 5/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 590 SEWER FUND
Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

73911.80 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 37 MONROE GEN SETMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 37 MONROE590-175.000-920.400
107604375.00 AC ATTENDEE REGISTRATION - J. GIER MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATIONAC ATTENDEE REGISTRATION - J. GIER 590-175.000-956.000

749211.42 J. GIER CREDIT CARDCARD SERVICES CENTERWWAD CON CONFERENCE590-175.000-956.000

15,562.85 Total For Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dept 546.000 OPERATIONS
10767556.22 GLV COW HYDROFLEC DRIVER TAN L/GLV COW HYDROFLEC DRIVER TAN XLFAMILY FARM & HOMEGLV COW HYDROFLEC DRIVER TAN L/GLV COW H590-546.000-726.800
107613382.22 TIRESPARNEY'S CAR CARE, LLCTIRES590-546.000-730.039
10761417.16 AIR FILTERPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVEAIR FILTER590-546.000-730.039
10769258.77 OIL CHANGE --2013 FORD F150 SUPER CABPARNEY'S CAR CARE, LLCOIL CHANGE --2013 FORD F150 SUPER CAB590-546.000-730.039

73145.16 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 135 BARBER STMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 135 BARBER ST590-546.000-920.400
10765641.64 2 COUPLING PVC SCH80/2 MIP ADPT. PVC SCH 80AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC2 COUPLING PVC SCH80/2 MIP ADPT. PVC SCH590-546.000-930.960
107552660.00 CEC COURSE - JAN/FEB 2024BLUE-WATER MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONSCEC COURSE - JAN/FEB 2024590-546.000-956.000

1,261.17 Total For Dept 546.000 OPERATIONS

Dept 547.000 TREATMENT
107657383.90 ORION ATC PROBE: EPOXY BODY MINIDIN CONNECTORUSABLUEBOOKORION ATC PROBE: EPOXY BODY MINIDIN CONN590-547.000-726.900
10767629.94 PROPACK AAA 30 PK GELZER HJ & SON INCPROPACK AAA 30 PK 590-547.000-726.900
1076482,151.32 CHLORINE/SULFUR DIOXIDEWATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED, INSUPPLIES - CHLORINE590-547.000-727.500
1076625,608.79 FERROUS CHLORIDE ALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORPORTIONFERROUS CHLORIDE 590-547.000-727.600
107648847.50 CHLORINE/SULFUR DIOXIDEWATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED, INSUPPLIES - DIOXIDE590-547.000-727.700
107659606.95 FUEL & LUBRICANTS FOR NOVEMBER 2023WATKINS OIL COMPANYFUEL & LUBRICANTS FOR NOVEMBER 2023590-547.000-740.000
1076023,419.00 BEF COMPLIANCE SAMPLES MERIT LABORATORIESBEF COMPLIANCE SAMPLES 590-547.000-801.000
1076325,500.00 NPDES ANNUAL PERMIT FEE 2024, HILLSDALE WWTPSTATE OF MICHIGAN EGLENPDES ANNUAL PERMIT FEE 2024, HILLSDALE 590-547.000-801.000
1077041,144.69 BIOSOLIDS LAND APPLICATION FEE 2024/DRY TONS REPORTED, FOR 2024STATE OF MICHIGAN EGLEBIOSOLIDS LAND APPLICATION FEE 2024/DRY 590-547.000-801.000

727110.01 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - W GALLOWAY GRMICH GAS UTILITIES504756735 - W GALLOWAY GR590-547.000-920.400
7281,166.23 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 101 W GALLOWAYMICH GAS UTILITIES504904602 - 101 W GALLOWAY590-547.000-920.400
732878.39 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 101 W GALLOWAY MNMICH GAS UTILITIES505161747 - 101 W GALLOWAY MN590-547.000-920.400

107559904.94 SIEMENS 14FUF32AA STARTERCLARK ELECTRIC INC.SIEMENS 14FUF32AA STARTER590-547.000-930.000
107577141.98 FUEL NOZZLE MANUAL 3/4" SWIVEL/DEWALT 108PC SOCKET SETFAMILY FARM & HOMEFUEL NOZZLE MANUAL 3/4" SWIVEL/DEWALT 10590-547.000-930.000
10760186.98 POLYURETHANE WHEEL WITH BALL BEARINGMCMASTER - CARRPOLYURETHANE WHEEL WITH BALL BEARING590-547.000-930.000
107643227.20 BLUE-WHITE TUBE ASSEMBLY FOR A3 & M3 PUMPSUSABLUEBOOKBLUE-WHITE TUBE ASSEMBLY FOR A3 & M3 PUM590-547.000-930.000
1076756.08 FENDER WASHER/LOCK NUTS-SS/CRSHEX CAP SCREWFAMILY FARM & HOMEFENDER WASHER/LOCK NUTS-SS/CRSHEX CAP SC590-547.000-930.000
10767531.96 GIANT STORAGE HOOK ZNFAMILY FARM & HOMEGIANT STORAGE HOOK ZN590-547.000-930.000
107675106.48 M MESA BLACK 13/GLV SYNTH LTHR DRVR CUFF BRN LFAMILY FARM & HOMEM MESA BLACK 13/GLV SYNTH LTHR DRVR CUFF590-547.000-930.000
10767620.58 2PK STORAGE HANGERGELZER HJ & SON INC2PK STORAGE HANGER590-547.000-930.000
10767613.49 7 PATTERN 33" WAND GELZER HJ & SON INC7 PATTERN 33" WAND 590-547.000-930.000
1076766.51 FASTENERS & ANCHORS GELZER HJ & SON INCFASTENERS & ANCHORS 590-547.000-930.000
1077085,656.00 EXTERNAL SPEED CONTROL USABLUEBOOKEXTERNAL SPEED CONTROL 590-547.000-930.000
1077111,500.00 TREE SERVICEWESLEY T WICKHAMTREE SERVICE590-547.000-930.000
10757754.99 CM CARTRIDGE FILTER 6GL+/SOFTENER SALT CUBE 40LB YELLOWFAMILY FARM & HOMECM CARTRIDGE FILTER 6GL+/SOFTENER SALT C590-547.000-930.900
10759845.01 FLOW METERMARKET HOUSEREPAIRS & MAINT. - LABORATORY590-547.000-930.900

30,648.92 Total For Dept 547.000 TREATMENT

111,421.59 Total For Fund 590 SEWER FUND

Fund 591 WATER FUND
Dept 000.000 

1076894,557.20 INVENTORYMICHIGAN PIPE & VALVESTREET BOX - 5.5' 1.5"  MINNEA 591-000.000-110.000
10757749.98 9" FAN FORCED WIRE ELEMENT HTRFAMILY FARM & HOME9" FAN FORCED WIRE ELEMENT HTR591-000.000-158.000-213002
10768527,612.50 WATER/SEWER DUMP TRUCK AS APPROVED BY BOARD/COUNCILLUNGHAMER FORD OF OWOSSO, LLCF550 CHASSIS ONLY - 1/2 SEWER591-000.000-158.000-213018
10770715,367.50 DUMP BOX FOR F550 CHASSISTRUCK & TRAILER SPECIALTIESDUMP BODY INSTALLATION - 1/2 SEWER591-000.000-158.000-213018
10755063.10 UB refund for account: 011577BETHEL, DAVID EWCCH  591-000.000-202.100



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 6/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 591 WATER FUND
Dept 000.000 

1075564.72 UB refund for account: 010408BURNS, CAITLIN PWBK1  591-000.000-202.100
107679616.19 UB refund for account: 305626HILLSDALE COUNTY ISDWCCH  591-000.000-202.100

48,271.19 Total For Dept 000.000 

Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
73343.68 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - WATER591-175.000-715.000
733184.14 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - WATER591-175.000-715.000
73319.61 DENTAL & VISION INSURANCE GROUP 00700345BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MIDENTAL & VISION - WATER591-175.000-715.000
7366,339.02 HEALTH INSURANCE - DEC 2023PLANSOURCE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATIONHEALTH INSURANCE - WATER591-175.000-715.000
73811.35 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYLIFE INSURANCE - WATER591-175.000-715.000
73882.81 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYLIFE INSURANCE - WATER591-175.000-715.000
7353,641.73 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS - 300101MERSRETIREMENT591-175.000-716.000
73819.61 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYDISABILITY INSURANCE - WATER591-175.000-721.000
738115.94 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCESUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANYDISABILITY INSURANCE - WATER591-175.000-721.000

10754226.59 SPOONS,PLATES,FORKS,CUPSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCSPOONS,PLATES,FORKS,CUPS591-175.000-726.000
10754235.54 SUPPLIES - 45 MONROE STREETAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCSUPPLIES - 45 MONROE STREET591-175.000-726.000
107564555.00 THREE CHAIRS - 101 W GALLOWAY DRCURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSTHREE CHAIRS 591-175.000-726.000
107564103.38 COPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023591-175.000-726.000
10759243.86 KITCHEN ROLL TOWEL, T. PAPER, VEHICLE WASH & WAXKSS ENTERPRISESKITCHEN ROLL TOWEL, T. PAPER, VEHICLE WA591-175.000-726.000
1076275.25 WATER FOR OFFICE - 45 MONROE STRUPERT'S CULLIGANWATER - OFFICE591-175.000-726.000
10766410.00 PLASTIC FORKSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCPLASTIC FORKS591-175.000-726.000
1076644.99 MONEY MARKER PENS/DETECTS FAKE COUNTERFIT BILLSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCMONEY MARKER PENS/DETECTS FAKE COUNTERFI591-175.000-726.000
10767233.95 COPY PAPER - 45 MONROE STREETCURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPY PAPER - 45 MONROE STREET591-175.000-726.000

749128.16 J. GIER CREDIT CARDCARD SERVICES CENTERLED LIGHTS591-175.000-726.000
10754050.00 TELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREETACD.NETTELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREET591-175.000-801.000
10756466.98 COPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOPIES/CONTRACT BILLING - NOV. 2023591-175.000-801.000
107566626.38 PRINTING/POSTAGE AND HANDLING OF BILLSDELAWARE SYSTEMSPRINTING/POSTAGE AND HANDLING OF BILLS591-175.000-801.000
10757365.00 BPU CLEANING FOR NOVEMBER 2023EAST 2 WEST ENTERPRISES, INCBPU CLEANING FOR NOVEMBER 2023591-175.000-801.000
1075756.25 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM-DEC 2023ERIC POTESBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM591-175.000-801.000
10761222.83 COMMISSION PAID FOR COLLECTIONS NOV 2023ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.COMMISSION PAID FOR COLLECTIONS NOV 2023591-175.000-801.000
10761221.56 UTILITY EXCHANGE REPORT/WEB ACCESS FEEONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.UTILITY EXCHANGE REPORT/WEB ACCESS FEE591-175.000-801.000
1076156.25 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM- DEC 2023PETER MICHAEL BECKERBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM591-175.000-801.000
1076256.25 BPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM - DEC. 2023ROBERT J BATTBPU BOARD MEETING PER DIEM591-175.000-801.000
107655312.50 AUDIT SERVICES FOR FYE 2023YEO & YEO PCAUDIT SERVICES FOR FYE 2023591-175.000-801.000
1077061,050.28 ACCOUNTING SERVICES - NOV 2023THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLCACCOUNTING SERVICES - NOV 2023591-175.000-801.000

63488.73 CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES - NOV 2023INVOICE CLOUDCREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES - NOV 2023591-175.000-801.000
49.99 24" MONITORS HDMI/DPAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC24" MONITORS HDMI/DP591-175.000-802.000

107629135.00 ANNUAL VEEAM BACKUP LICENSINGSONIT SYSTEMS, LLCANNUAL VEEAM BACKUP LICENSING591-175.000-802.000
10762977.62 SONIT NET ADMIN NOVEMBER 2023SONIT SYSTEMS, LLCSONIT NET ADMIN NOVEMBER 2023591-175.000-802.000
107644175.00 MILSOFT DISSPATCH LICENSE AND UNPLUGGED 11-23MILSOFTMILSOFT DISSPATCH LICENSE AND UNPLUGGED 591-175.000-802.000
107644125.62 IVR POOLED MONTHLY OUTAGE SUBSCRIPTION 11-23MILSOFTIVR POOLED MONTHLY OUTAGE SUBSCRIPTION591-175.000-802.000
10770140.91 VIPRE EMAIL AND TRENDMICRO RECUR (DEC)SONIT SYSTEMS, LLCVIPRE EMAIL AND TRENDMICRO RECUR (DEC)591-175.000-802.000
10754012.12 TELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREETACD.NETTELEPHONE - FIBER 45 MONROE STREET591-175.000-850.000
10754096.98 TELEPHONE - WTP 401 HILLSDALE STACD.NETTELEPHONE - WTP 401 HILLSDALE ST591-175.000-850.000
10755514.00 ETHERFAX DECEMBER 2023BSB COMMUNICATIONS INCETHERFAX DECEMBER 2023591-175.000-850.000
107645142.86 MONTHLY VERIZON BILL - DEC 23VERIZON WIRELESSMONTHLY VERIZON BILL - DEC 23591-175.000-850.000
10760062.50 COMMUNITY PROMOTION - NOVEMBER 2023MCKIBBIN MEDIA GROUP, INC.COMMUNITY PROMOTION - NOVEMBER 2023591-175.000-880.000
10770013.75 WINTER MICHIGAN PARENT -DEC 2023SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINEWINTER MICHIGAN PARENT -DEC 2023591-175.000-880.000
10770013.75 COMMUINITY PROMOTION- JAN/FEB 2024SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINECOMMUINITY PROMOTION- JAN/FEB 2024591-175.000-880.000

72632.39 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 37 MONROEMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 37 MONROE591-175.000-920.400
73076.15 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 45 MONROE STMICH GAS UTILITIES503214966 - 45 MONROE591-175.000-920.400
73911.80 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 37 MONROE GEN SETMICH GAS UTILITIES504504154 - 37 MONROE591-175.000-920.400



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 7/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Fund 591 WATER FUND
Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

14,808.06 Total For Dept 175.000 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dept 544.000 DISTRIBUTION
10754960.00 COME A LONG BECKER & SCRIVENSSUPPLIES - OPERATIONS591-544.000-726.800
10757726.97 1-1/2"X15' RATCHET TIEDOWN/GORILLA TAPE BLACK 1.88"X35YDFAMILY FARM & HOME1-1/2"X15' RATCHET TIEDOWN/GORILLA TAPE 591-544.000-726.800
10757933.96 50YD BLACK GORILLA TAPE/PROPACK AA 30 PK GELZER HJ & SON INC50YD BLACK GORILLA TAPE/PROPACK AA 30 PK591-544.000-726.800
107664330.79 HOT HAND WARMERS HEAT PACK/COLD WEATHER GLOVES/PENSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INCHOT HAND WARMERS HEAT PACK/COLD WEATHER 591-544.000-726.800
107676159.99 6CUFT STEEL WHEELBARROW GELZER HJ & SON INC6CUFT STEEL WHEELBARROW 591-544.000-726.800
107577154.99 BATTERY 24 MO 850 CCAFAMILY FARM & HOMEBATTERY 24 MO 850 CCA591-544.000-730.039
107613382.22 TIRESPARNEY'S CAR CARE, LLCTIRES591-544.000-730.039
1076149.38 WASHER SOLVENT-20PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVEWASHER SOLVENT-20591-544.000-730.039
107659606.94 FUEL & LUBRICANTS FOR NOVEMBER 2023WATKINS OIL COMPANYFUEL & LUBRICANTS FOR NOVEMBER 2023591-544.000-740.000
1075861,564.50 CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM INSPECTION SEPT 2023HYDROCORPCROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM INSPECT591-544.000-801.000
1075861,564.50 CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAM APPROVED BY BOARD/COUNCILHYDROCORPTWO YEAR CONTRACT EXTENSION591-544.000-801.000
107643741.63 HD DISCHARGE HOSE 3" X 50' M&F QUICK ALUM USABLUEBOOKHD DISCHARGE HOSE 3" X 50' M&F QUICK ALU591-544.000-930.000
107665199.85 1 CTS 250 PSI 300' POLYAMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC1 CTS 250 PSI 300' POLY591-544.000-930.990
10766799.25 1/2" REGAR/4000 PSI CONCRETE W/LIMESTONE - WEST ST BECKER & SCRIVENS1/2" REGAR/4000 PSI CONCRETE W/LIMESTONE591-544.000-930.990
10767641.45 60LB CONCRETE MIXGELZER HJ & SON INC60LB CONCRETE MIX591-544.000-930.990

5,976.42 Total For Dept 544.000 DISTRIBUTION

Dept 545.000 PURIFICATION
1076424,934.23 SOD HYPO 12.5% LIQUICHLORUNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INCSOD HYPO 12.5% LIQUICHLOR591-545.000-727.200

729400.44 NATURAL GAS UTILITY - 401 HILLSDALEMICH GAS UTILITIES504558065 - 401 HILLSDALE591-545.000-920.400
10757913.49 2X36 SILVER DOOR BOTTOM GELZER HJ & SON INC2X36 SILVER DOOR BOTTOM 591-545.000-930.000
10757941.36 1/16-1/2 ADJ TAP WRENCH/5/16 BRITE DRILL BIT/PLUG TAPGELZER HJ & SON INC1/16-1/2 ADJ TAP WRENCH/5/16 BRITE DRILL591-545.000-930.000
107643989.23 HEAD ASSEMBLYUSABLUEBOOKHEAD ASSEMBLY591-545.000-930.000

6,378.75 Total For Dept 545.000 PURIFICATION

75,434.42 Total For Fund 591 WATER FUND

28,095.15   2840       - STATE OF MICHIGAN
592.03   2831       - VERIZON WIRELESS
202.03   2744       - TRI COUNTY INT'L TRUCK INC
206.00   2645       - POWERS CLOTHING, INC.
849.46   2432       - AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC

18,891.55   2359       - MERS
269.00   2326       - JONESVILLE LUMBER

1,596.71   2278       - WATKINS OIL COMPANY
46.00   2174       - WHITE'S WELDING SERVICE
825.00   2037       - POSITIVE ELECTRIC LLC
794.15   2013       - BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MI
55.00   1983       - SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINE
130.00   1299       - EAST 2 WEST ENTERPRISES, INC
577.05   1239       - SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY
170.03   0961       - PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE
87.72   0255       - KSS ENTERPRISES
18.13   0164       - MARKET HOUSE
214.66   0124       - BRONNER'S CHRISTMAS WONDERLAND

2,219.41   0081       - MICH GAS UTILITIES
305.26   0035       - CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONS
223.53   0027       - GELZER HJ & SON INC

Fund 582 ELECTRIC FUND

--- FUND TOTALS BY VENDOR ---
1,019,360.44 Total For All Funds: 



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 8/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

88.73   6479       - INVOICE CLOUD
1,050.28   6472       - THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLC

253.53   5531       - SONIT SYSTEMS, LLC
127.10   5503       - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC

6.25   3774       - ROBERT J BATT
6,644.69   3736       - STATE OF MICHIGAN EGLE

904.94   3324       - CLARK ELECTRIC INC.
142.86   2831       - VERIZON WIRELESS
840.00   2526       - TETRA TECH, INC
41.64   2432       - AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC
440.99   2412       - PARNEY'S CAR CARE, LLC

3,619.28   2359       - MERS
606.95   2278       - WATKINS OIL COMPANY
336.26   2013       - BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MI
27.50   1983       - SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINE
65.00   1299       - EAST 2 WEST ENTERPRISES, INC
213.56   1239       - SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY
17.16   0961       - PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE

15,367.50   0442       - TRUCK & TRAILER SPECIALTIES
43.86   0255       - KSS ENTERPRISES
45.01   0164       - MARKET HOUSE

2,320.13   0081       - MICH GAS UTILITIES
100.93   0035       - CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONS
70.52   0027       - GELZER HJ & SON INC

Fund 590 SEWER FUND

832,504.43 TOTAL FUND 582 ELECTRIC FUND
1,296.00   UIS PROG   - UIS SCADA, INC.
3,487.45   T & R      - T & R ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY INC
3,488.00   SSOE       - SSOE, INC.

10.50   RUPERT'S   - RUPERT'S CULLIGAN
20,246.63   POWER      - POWERLINE  SUPPLY

84.79   ONLINE     - ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
704,183.53   MSCPA      - MICHIGAN SOUTH CENTRAL POWER AGENCY

125.00   MMG        - MCKIBBIN MEDIA GROUP, INC.
2,363.82   MISC       - MISC VENDOR

601.26   MILSOFT    - MILSOFT
5,503.90   MERLE BOES - MERLE BOES, INC.

238.18   MASTERCARD - CARD SERVICES CENTER
5,344.99   LARA       - LARA - MI PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

11.98   FAMILY     - FAMILY FARM & HOME
1,252.78   DELA       - DELAWARE SYSTEMS
2,682.90   CAA        - COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

28.00   BSB        - BSB COMMUNICATIONS INC
775.00   APWA -MPSI - APWA MICHIGAN CHAPTER - MPSI
110.00   AMP        - AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC
269.72   ACD        - ACD.NET

1,550.00   6644       - POWER SYSTEM ENGINEERING, INC.
12.50   6631       - ERIC POTES
12.50   6628       - PETER MICHAEL BECKER
625.00   6608       - YEO & YEO PC

17,949.14   6558       - PLANSOURCE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION
177.49   6479       - INVOICE CLOUD

2,100.55   6472       - THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLC
507.07   5531       - SONIT SYSTEMS, LLC
900.38   5503       - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC
12.50   3774       - ROBERT J BATT
150.00   3736       - STATE OF MICHIGAN EGLE
35.00   3248       - HEFFERNAN SOFT WATER SERVICE



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 9/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

128.16   MASTERCARD - CARD SERVICES CENTER
3,129.00   HYDROCORP  - HYDROCORP

231.94   FAMILY     - FAMILY FARM & HOME
626.38   DELA       - DELAWARE SYSTEMS
14.00   BSB        - BSB COMMUNICATIONS INC
159.10   ACD        - ACD.NET

27,612.50   6655       - LUNGHAMER FORD OF OWOSSO, LLC
6.25   6631       - ERIC POTES
6.25   6628       - PETER MICHAEL BECKER

312.50   6608       - YEO & YEO PC
6,339.02   6558       - PLANSOURCE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION

88.73   6479       - INVOICE CLOUD
1,050.28   6472       - THE WOODHILL GROUP, LLC

253.53   5531       - SONIT SYSTEMS, LLC
457.90   5503       - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC

6.25   3774       - ROBERT J BATT
142.86   2831       - VERIZON WIRELESS
199.85   2432       - AMERICAN COPPER AND BRASS, LLC
382.22   2412       - PARNEY'S CAR CARE, LLC

3,641.73   2359       - MERS
606.94   2278       - WATKINS OIL COMPANY
247.43   2013       - BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MI
27.50   1983       - SIMPLY HERS MAGAZINE
65.00   1299       - EAST 2 WEST ENTERPRISES, INC
229.71   1239       - SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY

9.38   0961       - PERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE
15,367.50   0442       - TRUCK & TRAILER SPECIALTIES

159.25   0378       - BECKER & SCRIVENS
43.86   0255       - KSS ENTERPRISES
520.78   0081       - MICH GAS UTILITIES
759.31   0035       - CURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONS
290.25   0027       - GELZER HJ & SON INC

Fund 591 WATER FUND

111,421.59 TOTAL FUND 590 SEWER FUND
6,267.10   USABLUEBOO - USABLUEBOOK

5.25   RUPERT'S   - RUPERT'S CULLIGAN
44.39   ONLINE     - ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
375.00   MRWA       - MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION
62.50   MMG        - MCKIBBIN MEDIA GROUP, INC.
780.74   MISC       - MISC VENDOR
300.62   MILSOFT    - MILSOFT

3,419.00   MERIT LAB  - MERIT LABORATORIES
86.98   MCMASTER   - MCMASTER - CARR
211.42   MASTERCARD - CARD SERVICES CENTER
397.71   FAMILY     - FAMILY FARM & HOME
626.39   DELA       - DELAWARE SYSTEMS
14.00   BSB        - BSB COMMUNICATIONS INC

19,347.91   APPLIED    - APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES
5,608.79   ALEXANDER  - ALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORPORTION

159.10   ACD        - ACD.NET
27,612.50   6655       - LUNGHAMER FORD OF OWOSSO, LLC

660.00   6647       - BLUE-WATER MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS
1,500.00   6646       - WESLEY T WICKHAM

6.25   6631       - ERIC POTES
6.25   6628       - PETER MICHAEL BECKER

312.50   6608       - YEO & YEO PC
7,243.70   6558       - PLANSOURCE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION
2,998.82   6484       - WATER SOLUTIONS UNLIMITED, IN



Check #AmountInvoice DescriptionVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 10/10Page:12/29/2023 07:55 AM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale

INVOICE ENTRY DATES 12/01/2023 - 12/31/2023
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

75,434.42 TOTAL FUND 591 WATER FUND
1,730.86   USABLUEBOO - USABLUEBOOK
4,934.23   UNIVAR     - UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC

5.25   RUPERT'S   - RUPERT'S CULLIGAN
44.39   ONLINE     - ONLINE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC.
62.50   MMG        - MCKIBBIN MEDIA GROUP, INC.
684.01   MISC       - MISC VENDOR
300.62   MILSOFT    - MILSOFT

4,557.20   MICH       - MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE



To:  BPU Board 
From:  Karen Lancaster, Finance Director 
Date:   1/9/24 
Re:  November 2023 Financial Review (unaudited data) 

Revenues:  As of November, approximately 41% of the 2024 budget year is complete.  Electric revenues are in line with the average of the five years shown. 
Sewer and Water revenues are higher than the average of the last five years due to the rate increase as well as volume increases. For Electric, All Other Revenue 
Sources has higher interest income due to a higher investable balance as well as increased interest rates, change of investments have increased and billable 
services for mutual aid are included. For Sewer and Water, All Other Revenue Sources has higher interest income due to a higher investable balance from the 
bond proceeds as well as increased interest rates, change of investments have increased, billable services have increased and CDBG Grant funds are being 
received. Rate increases for 2023-24 are 2% for Electric, 5% for Sewer and 10% for Water. 

 

BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE Current YTD
AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF Compared

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 11/30/2019 11/30/2020 11/30/2021 11/30/2022 11/30/2023 Average to Average
Fund 582 - ELECTRIC FUND
582-000.000-613.000 RESIDENTIAL SALES 2,017,289 2,140,341 2,162,875 2,124,620 2,233,024 2,135,630 105%
582-000.000-614.000 BUSINESS SALES 586,328 573,810 597,705 647,560 687,110 618,503 111%
582-000.000-615.000 COMMERCIAL SALES 1,482,122 1,374,677 1,454,461 1,412,525 1,469,736 1,438,704 102%
582-000.000-616.000 INDUSTRY SALES 1,405,052 1,451,380 1,361,706 1,501,020 1,534,143 1,450,660 106%
582-000.000-617.000 STREET LIGHT SALES 22,136 22,557 22,022 21,289 21,281 21,857 97%
ALL OTHER REVENUE SOURCES 264,895 197,276 178,277 86,058 253,057 195,912 129%

Total 5,777,822 5,760,041 5,777,045 5,793,072 6,198,351
Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
590-000.000-613.000 RESIDENTIAL SALES 379,059 417,953 433,177 439,155 473,970 428,663 111%
590-000.000-614.000 BUSINESS SALES 73,445 71,212 79,758 93,725 101,003 83,829 120%
590-000.000-615.000 COMMERCIAL SALES 167,354 168,679 194,918 237,034 264,595 206,516 128%
590-000.000-616.000 INDUSTRY SALES 132,164 164,999 179,148 210,651 152,733 167,939 91%
590-000.000-619.000 APARTMENT SALES 145,750 158,337 155,776 172,793 185,467 163,625 113%
ALL OTHER REVENUE SOURCES 36,644 39,082 42,040 71,331 193,705 76,560 253%
 Total 934,415 1,020,260 1,084,817 1,224,689 1,371,474
Fund 591 - WATER FUND
591-000.000-613.000 RESIDENTIAL SALES 275,859 309,026 319,638 335,668 378,575 323,753 117%
591-000.000-614.000 BUSINESS SALES 69,668 76,755 75,206 94,411 113,738 85,956 132%
591-000.000-615.000 COMMERCIAL SALES 135,248 147,973 168,761 202,512 237,567 178,412 133%
591-000.000-616.000 INDUSTRY SALES 76,372 96,436 106,804 129,910 99,282 101,761 98%
591-000.000-619.000 APARTMENT SALES 103,684 111,574 110,182 125,946 140,660 118,409 119%
ALL OTHER REVENUE SOURCES 31,821 24,422 25,310 120,328 186,067 77,589 240%
 Total 692,653 766,186 805,901 1,008,776 1,155,889   

Grand Total 7,404,890 7,546,487 7,667,764 8,026,537 8,725,714



2 

Expenses:  In each fund, Administration expenses are higher than normal due to the accounting for insurance premiums.  In years prior to 2022-23, the premium 
was spread out over 12 months using journal entries.  For FY23 and FY24, this annual charge is not prorated in order to be more efficient and reduce the number 
of entries. In Electric, the premium/broker fee was $53K, and in Sewer and Water, the premium/broker fee was $19K for each of those funds.  Also, for Water and 
Sewer, there is interest expense for the 2022 bond issue included in Administrative Services. 

Sewer Treatment is higher than average due to the rising chemical costs and sewer treatment will continue to be higher than average due to higher depreciation 
expense as a result of the capitalization of wastewater treatment plant improvements in the fiscal year 2021. Water Distribution is higher than average due to costs 
associated with the Lead Services of $163K.   

 

BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE Current YTD
AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF Compared

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 10/31/2019 10/31/2020 10/31/2021 10/31/2022 10/31/2023 Average to Average
Fund 582 - ELECTRIC FUND
Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 528,359 565,403 507,409 650,535 672,669 584,875 115%
Dept 543.000 - PRODUCTION 3,160,670 3,286,166 3,264,486 3,832,848 3,289,591 3,366,752 98%
Dept 544.000 - DISTRIBUTION 468,330 458,227 735,536 536,683 597,446 559,244 107%
 Total 4,157,359 4,309,796 4,507,431 5,020,065 4,559,705
Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 198,426 197,709 275,012 294,690 346,270 262,421 132%
Dept 546.000 - OPERATIONS 72,133 59,150 257,142 99,405 71,718 111,910 64%
Dept 547.000 - TREATMENT 161,317 204,502 245,420 279,895 302,735 238,774 127%

Total 431,876 461,362 777,574 673,990 720,722
Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 132,077 136,353 157,198 195,219 274,389 179,047 153%
Dept 543.000 - PRODUCTION 41,646 29,005 29,386 30,383 24,413 30,967 79%
Dept 544.000 - DISTRIBUTION 150,380 251,844 203,224 253,964 303,826 232,648 131%
Dept 545.000 - PURIFICATION 92,559 105,770 112,454 115,148 115,575 108,301 107%
 Total 416,662 522,971 502,263 594,714 718,203

Grand Total 5,005,897 5,294,129 5,787,268 6,288,769 5,998,630



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 1/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - ELECTRIC FUND
Revenues
Dept 000.000

34.73 158,314.39 16,497.12 84,235.61 242,550.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVENUE582-000.000-593.000
40.80 3,239,529.05 391,554.28 2,233,023.95 5,472,553.00 RESIDENTIAL SALES582-000.000-613.000
41.33 975,186.04 124,381.18 687,109.96 1,662,296.00 BUSINESS SALES582-000.000-614.000
42.11 2,020,085.78 248,120.36 1,469,736.22 3,489,822.00 COMMERCIAL SALES582-000.000-615.000
44.08 1,946,204.35 278,059.52 1,534,142.65 3,480,347.00 INDUSTRY SALES582-000.000-616.000
30.67 48,107.58 4,256.71 21,281.42 69,389.00 STREET LIGHT SALES582-000.000-617.000
78.01 21,988.72 18,092.33 78,011.28 100,000.00 INTEREST582-000.000-665.000
100.00 (77,059.27)86,467.34 77,059.27 0.00 CHANGE IN INVESTMENTS582-000.000-669.000
100.00 (500.00)500.00 500.00 0.00 GAIN ON SALE OF PROPERTY582-000.000-673.001
52.78 21,248.80 3,348.71 23,751.20 45,000.00 LATE CHARGES582-000.000-679.000
100.00 78,889.01 (3,624.00)(78,889.01)0.00 INVENTORY ADJUSTMENT582-000.000-680.000
100.00 (11,242.70)0.00 11,242.70 0.00 OTHER REFUNDS582-000.000-687.300
100.00 323.00 (118.81)(323.00)0.00 CASH OVER & (SHORT)582-000.000-689.000
41.38 71,973.23 4,102.41 50,796.77 122,770.00 OTHER REVENUE - MISC OPERATING582-000.000-692.001
26.69 18,327.75 547.84 6,672.25 25,000.00 OTHER REVENUE - MISC NON-OPERATING582-000.000-692.200

42.14 8,511,375.73 1,172,184.99 6,198,351.27 14,709,727.00 Total Dept 000.000

42.14 8,511,375.73 1,172,184.99 6,198,351.27 14,709,727.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

36.35 281,010.41 41,168.43 160,483.59 441,494.00 WAGES582-175.000-702.000
100.00 (173.73)0.00 173.73 0.00 OVERTIME PAY582-175.000-703.000
100.00 (7,741.75)933.55 7,741.75 0.00 SICK TIME PAY582-175.000-704.000
100.00 (4,393.26)1,216.95 4,393.26 0.00 VACATION TIME PAY582-175.000-705.000
100.00 (1,147.24)36.11 1,147.24 0.00 PERSONAL TIME PAY582-175.000-706.000
100.00 (7,100.00)7,100.00 7,100.00 0.00 LONGEVITY PAY582-175.000-707.000
953.93 (3,415.70)1,300.10 3,815.70 400.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY582-175.000-710.000
100.00 334.97 0.00 (334.97)0.00 COMPENSATED ABSENCES582-175.000-714.000
48.56 103,952.62 20,675.40 98,129.38 202,082.00 HEALTH & LIFE INSURANCE582-175.000-715.000
105.24 (5,048.15)20,846.67 101,312.15 96,264.00 RETIREMENT582-175.000-716.000
75.92 1,998.30 0.00 6,301.70 8,300.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION582-175.000-717.000
40.24 19,910.49 3,403.49 13,409.51 33,320.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA582-175.000-720.000
36.22 3,188.81 383.07 1,811.19 5,000.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE582-175.000-721.000
100.00 131,923.49 (29,786.10)(131,923.49)0.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE582-175.000-725.100
34.96 13,008.27 1,611.08 6,991.73 20,000.00 SUPPLIES582-175.000-726.000
100.00 (3,736.56)0.00 3,736.56 0.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS582-175.000-742.000
53.15 46,847.36 8,666.74 53,152.64 100,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES582-175.000-801.000
0.00 14,050.00 0.00 0.00 14,050.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - COMPUTER582-175.000-801.200

35.92 61,699.94 701.48 34,585.06 96,285.00 TECHNICAL SERVICES582-175.000-802.000
0.00 185,000.00 0.00 0.00 185,000.00 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION582-175.000-803.000
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 LEGAL SERVICES582-175.000-806.000
3.41 26,562.28 0.00 937.72 27,500.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS582-175.000-810.000

50.61 51,863.17 0.00 53,136.83 105,000.00 INSURANCE582-175.000-818.000
45.13 433,746.35 62,782.32 356,717.65 790,464.00 PILOT582-175.000-820.000
30.21 9,448.11 820.44 4,088.89 13,537.00 TELEPHONE582-175.000-850.000
28.77 3,561.61 304.44 1,438.39 5,000.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION582-175.000-880.000
100.00 0.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 SPONSORSHIPS582-175.000-906.000
12.93 3,482.86 240.68 517.14 4,000.00 UTILITIES - GAS582-175.000-920.400
7.21 9,278.72 413.44 721.28 10,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE582-175.000-930.000



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 2/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - ELECTRIC FUND
Expenditures

100.00 (50.00)0.00 50.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS582-175.000-955.000
100.00 (799.19)0.00 799.19 0.00 MISC. - CDL LICENSING/TESTING582-175.000-955.588
19.27 10,494.58 25.00 2,505.42 13,000.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS582-175.000-956.000
135.56 (889.09)529.60 3,389.09 2,500.00 LODGING & MEALS582-175.000-956.200
58.12 2,931.38 737.38 4,068.62 7,000.00 BANK FEES582-175.000-960.000
100.00 (204.19)75.85 204.19 0.00 WRITE OFF BAD DEBT(S)582-175.000-963.000
100.00 (13,684.62)0.00 13,684.62 0.00 DEPRECIATION582-175.000-968.000
44.41 3,891.50 539.50 3,108.50 7,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE582-175.000-969.000
0.00 33,000.00 0.00 0.00 33,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY582-175.000-970.000

37.00 1,404,301.74 152,225.62 824,894.26 2,229,196.00 Total Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dept 543.000 - PRODUCTION
17.23 178,739.88 4,406.51 37,214.12 215,954.00 WAGES582-543.000-702.000
100.00 (1,265.97)0.00 1,265.97 0.00 OVERTIME PAY582-543.000-703.000

0.67 49,506.11 55.66 333.89 49,840.00 RETIREMENT582-543.000-716.000
16.28 13,830.38 287.95 2,689.62 16,520.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA582-543.000-720.000
32.72 38,501.84 2,451.02 18,722.16 57,224.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE582-543.000-725.100
38.84 2,446.26 85.96 1,553.74 4,000.00 SUPPLIES582-543.000-726.000
37.49 6,430,011.22 704,183.53 3,857,175.78 10,287,187.00 PURCHASED POWER582-543.000-739.000
36.69 9,496.10 0.00 5,503.90 15,000.00 FUEL & LUBRICANTS582-543.000-740.000
109.30 (1,395.74)0.00 16,395.74 15,000.00 FUEL OIL - ENGINE #5582-543.000-740.100
67.11 4,933.08 0.00 10,066.92 15,000.00 FUEL OIL - ENGINE #6582-543.000-740.200
0.47 19,905.66 18.49 94.34 20,000.00 NATURAL GAS - ENGINE #5582-543.000-740.300
0.47 19,905.63 18.49 94.37 20,000.00 NATURAL GAS - ENGINE #6582-543.000-740.400
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS582-543.000-742.000

100.00 11,487.96 0.00 (11,487.96)0.00 INVENTORY ADJUSTMENT582-543.000-771.000
0.55 39,780.00 0.00 220.00 40,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES582-543.000-801.000
8.79 12,769.08 1,052.64 1,230.92 14,000.00 UTILITIES - GAS582-543.000-920.400
3.13 29,060.76 0.00 939.24 30,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE - BLDG582-543.000-930.000

11.51 17,698.11 0.00 2,301.89 20,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - ENGINE #5582-543.000-930.050
38.22 12,356.82 0.00 7,643.18 20,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - ENGINE #6582-543.000-930.060
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS582-543.000-956.000

100.00 (49,973.93)0.00 49,973.93 0.00 DEPRECIATION582-543.000-968.000
20.18 31,927.00 2,350.00 8,073.00 40,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE582-543.000-969.000
0.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY582-543.000-970.000

36.68 6,922,720.25 714,910.25 4,010,004.75 10,932,725.00 Total Dept 543.000 - PRODUCTION

Dept 544.000 - DISTRIBUTION
56.39 165,321.58 49,185.48 213,812.42 379,134.00 WAGES582-544.000-702.000
30.24 48,832.13 1,604.64 21,167.87 70,000.00 OVERTIME PAY582-544.000-703.000
100.00 (342.31)0.00 342.31 0.00 OVERTIME PAY - STORM582-544.000-703.000-215015
100.00 (206.00)0.00 206.00 0.00 VACATION TIME PAY582-544.000-705.000

5.07 104,257.13 1,286.98 5,566.87 109,824.00 RETIREMENT582-544.000-716.000
100.00 (10.62)0.00 10.62 0.00 RETIREMENT - STORM582-544.000-716.000-215015
56.74 12,537.53 3,589.30 16,447.47 28,985.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA582-544.000-720.000
100.00 (24.38)0.00 24.38 0.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA - STORM582-544.000-720.000-215015
134.72 (29,189.14)27,335.08 113,259.14 84,070.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE582-544.000-725.100
75.95 7,214.60 3,414.53 22,785.40 30,000.00 SUPPLIES - OPERATIONS582-544.000-726.800
55.68 17,728.16 7,016.09 22,271.84 40,000.00 VEH./EQUIP. MAINT. SUPPLIES582-544.000-730.000
43.62 14,095.59 1,883.90 10,904.41 25,000.00 FUEL & LUBRICANTS582-544.000-740.000



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 3/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 582 - ELECTRIC FUND
Expenditures

23.13 12,684.08 206.00 3,815.92 16,500.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS582-544.000-742.000
89.12 870.21 2,443.79 7,129.79 8,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES582-544.000-801.000
0.10 249,753.86 0.00 246.14 250,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - TREE TRIMMING582-544.000-801.300

21.00 118,499.75 4,683.74 31,500.25 150,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE582-544.000-930.000
23.96 74,139.64 1,385.60 23,360.36 97,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.  - SUBSTATIONS582-544.000-930.546
32.69 15,482.01 114.00 7,517.99 23,000.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS582-544.000-956.000
100.00 (198,780.94)0.00 198,780.94 0.00 DEPRECIATION582-544.000-968.000
33.84 6,285.00 718.00 3,215.00 9,500.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE582-544.000-969.000
0.00 2,542,208.00 0.00 0.00 2,542,208.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY582-544.000-970.000

18.18 3,161,355.88 104,867.13 702,365.12 3,863,721.00 Total Dept 544.000 - DISTRIBUTION

32.52 11,488,377.87 972,003.00 5,537,264.13 17,025,642.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

28.55 (2,977,002.14)200,181.99 661,087.14 (2,315,915.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

32.52 11,488,377.87 972,003.00 5,537,264.13 17,025,642.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
42.14 8,511,375.73 1,172,184.99 6,198,351.27 14,709,727.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 582 - ELECTRIC FUND:



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 4/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Revenues
Dept 000.000

1.22 1,244,667.66 9,612.34 15,332.34 1,260,000.00 FEDERAL GRANT - CDBG PROJECT590-000.000-529.000-215006
33.23 5,608.91 522.84 2,791.09 8,400.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVENUE590-000.000-593.000
40.41 699,067.29 93,357.76 473,969.71 1,173,037.00 RESIDENTIAL SALES590-000.000-613.000
49.06 104,867.52 20,300.47 101,003.48 205,871.00 BUSINESS SALES590-000.000-614.000
55.04 216,151.03 54,060.45 264,594.97 480,746.00 COMMERCIAL SALES590-000.000-615.000
32.21 321,487.10 29,719.79 152,732.90 474,220.00 INDUSTRY SALES590-000.000-616.000
42.56 250,321.67 37,363.59 185,467.33 435,789.00 APARTMENT SALES590-000.000-619.000
175.82 (37,910.96)18,668.42 87,910.96 50,000.00 INTEREST590-000.000-665.000
100.00 (12,069.56)2,928.12 12,069.56 0.00 CHANGE IN INVESTMENTS590-000.000-669.000
100.00 (4,313.00)4,313.00 4,313.00 0.00 GAIN ON SALE OF PROPERTY590-000.000-673.001
74.15 1,809.74 774.78 5,190.26 7,000.00 LATE CHARGES590-000.000-679.000
100.00 (4,898.72)0.00 4,898.72 0.00 OTHER REFUNDS590-000.000-687.300
39.95 9,607.50 1,347.50 6,392.50 16,000.00 OTHER REVENUE - MISC OPERATING590-000.000-692.001
137.02 (14,806.96)10,001.79 54,806.96 40,000.00 OTHER REVENUE - MISC NON-OPERATING590-000.000-692.200

33.04 2,779,589.22 282,970.85 1,371,473.78 4,151,063.00 Total Dept 000.000

33.04 2,779,589.22 282,970.85 1,371,473.78 4,151,063.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

31.78 162,848.58 18,463.40 75,878.42 238,727.00 WAGES590-175.000-702.000
0.00 5,426.00 0.00 0.00 5,426.00 WAGES - PART TIME590-175.000-702.100

100.00 (68.01)0.00 68.01 0.00 OVERTIME PAY590-175.000-703.000
100.00 (709.76)466.81 709.76 0.00 SICK TIME PAY590-175.000-704.000
100.00 (6,513.17)2,768.55 6,513.17 0.00 VACATION TIME PAY590-175.000-705.000
100.00 (118.64)18.06 118.64 0.00 PERSONAL TIME PAY590-175.000-706.000
100.00 (840.00)840.00 840.00 0.00 LONGEVITY PAY590-175.000-707.000
455.89 (1,601.51)660.31 2,051.51 450.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY590-175.000-710.000
40.64 59,672.81 8,141.55 40,854.19 100,527.00 HEALTH & LIFE INSURANCE590-175.000-715.000
51.34 22,971.28 4,783.21 24,240.72 47,212.00 RETIREMENT590-175.000-716.000
89.38 244.19 0.00 2,055.81 2,300.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION590-175.000-717.000
33.00 12,055.88 1,526.46 5,938.12 17,994.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA590-175.000-720.000
45.27 875.67 145.24 724.33 1,600.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE590-175.000-721.000
100.00 34,775.33 (7,667.42)(34,775.33)0.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE590-175.000-725.100
25.82 8,902.03 785.54 3,097.97 12,000.00 SUPPLIES590-175.000-726.000
0.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 BPU VEHICLE MAINT/SUPPLIES590-175.000-730.039

100.00 (11.27)0.00 11.27 0.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS590-175.000-742.000
57.85 16,860.58 4,440.35 23,139.42 40,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-175.000-801.000
100.00 (1,200.00)1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - BOND COSTS590-175.000-801.070

0.00 7,025.00 0.00 0.00 7,025.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - COMPUTER590-175.000-801.200
47.41 20,010.12 353.73 18,036.88 38,047.00 TECHNICAL SERVICES590-175.000-802.000
0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 LEGAL SERVICES590-175.000-806.000
5.64 9,436.14 0.00 563.86 10,000.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS590-175.000-810.000

52.55 16,844.84 0.00 18,655.16 35,500.00 INSURANCE590-175.000-818.000
46.20 82,282.89 14,088.12 70,666.11 152,949.00 PILOT590-175.000-820.000
33.56 2,803.05 281.31 1,415.95 4,219.00 TELEPHONE590-175.000-850.000
28.77 1,780.80 152.22 719.20 2,500.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION590-175.000-880.000
100.00 0.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 SPONSORSHIPS590-175.000-906.000
23.50 841.46 120.34 258.54 1,100.00 UTILITIES - GAS590-175.000-920.400
5.85 4,707.42 96.29 292.58 5,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE590-175.000-930.000



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 5/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Expenditures

100.00 (25.00)0.00 25.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS590-175.000-955.000
100.00 (110.17)43.00 110.17 0.00 MISC. - CDL LICENSING/TESTING590-175.000-955.588
28.69 3,208.83 365.00 1,291.17 4,500.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS590-175.000-956.000
278.50 (356.99)243.81 556.99 200.00 LODGING & MEALS590-175.000-956.200
32.63 1,347.33 125.44 652.67 2,000.00 BANK FEES590-175.000-960.000
100.00 (102.10)37.93 102.10 0.00 WRITE OFF BAD DEBT(S)590-175.000-963.000
100.00 (4,134.90)0.00 4,134.90 0.00 DEPRECIATION590-175.000-968.000
42.34 2,018.25 255.25 1,481.75 3,500.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE590-175.000-969.000
0.00 16,500.00 0.00 0.00 16,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY590-175.000-970.000

49.00 132,552.00 0.00 127,375.00 259,927.00 INTEREST EXPENSE590-175.000-993.000

39.55 615,698.96 56,484.50 402,754.04 1,018,453.00 Total Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dept 546.000 - OPERATIONS
36.00 47,580.58 5,455.78 26,766.42 74,347.00 WAGES590-546.000-702.000
100.00 (863.71)0.00 863.71 0.00 OVERTIME PAY590-546.000-703.000
100.00 (0.96)0.00 0.96 0.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY590-546.000-710.000

7.51 12,103.96 172.17 983.04 13,087.00 RETIREMENT590-546.000-716.000
34.78 3,703.34 392.02 1,974.66 5,678.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA590-546.000-720.000
73.96 4,417.12 2,887.97 12,544.88 16,962.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE590-546.000-725.100
7.62 2,309.52 8.99 190.48 2,500.00 SUPPLIES - OPERATIONS590-546.000-726.800

28.43 4,115.17 409.19 1,634.83 5,750.00 BPU VEHICLE MAINT/SUPPLIES590-546.000-730.039
27.16 3,095.83 0.00 1,154.17 4,250.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS590-546.000-742.000
0.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-546.000-801.000

100.00 (200.10)45.16 200.10 0.00 UTILITIES - GAS590-546.000-920.400
0.00 16,000.00 0.00 0.00 16,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE590-546.000-930.000

14.43 7,273.64 26.36 1,226.36 8,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - LIFT STATIONS590-546.000-930.950
1.64 245,888.71 0.00 4,111.29 250,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - SEWER MAINS590-546.000-930.960

27.07 3,646.72 1,026.36 1,353.28 5,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - MANHOLES590-546.000-930.970
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 REPIARS & MAINT. - SERVICE LINES590-546.000-930.980

20.42 2,387.50 0.00 612.50 3,000.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS590-546.000-956.000
100.00 (26,734.54)0.00 26,734.54 0.00 DEPRECIATION590-546.000-968.000
35.43 4,197.00 471.00 2,303.00 6,500.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE590-546.000-969.000
0.00 3,621,311.00 0.00 0.00 3,621,311.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY590-546.000-970.000

2.05 3,956,230.78 10,895.00 82,654.22 4,038,885.00 Total Dept 546.000 - OPERATIONS

Dept 547.000 - TREATMENT
36.99 80,959.22 8,675.88 47,518.78 128,478.00 WAGES590-547.000-702.000
100.00 (4,188.84)833.88 4,188.84 0.00 OVERTIME PAY590-547.000-703.000
32.20 711.90 56.75 338.10 1,050.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY590-547.000-710.000
15.82 15,369.44 530.49 2,888.56 18,258.00 RETIREMENT590-547.000-716.000
35.96 6,294.66 650.64 3,534.34 9,829.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA590-547.000-720.000
60.10 15,140.11 4,779.45 22,807.89 37,948.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE590-547.000-725.100
76.88 7,860.92 2,469.85 26,139.08 34,000.00 SUPPLIES - LABORATORY590-547.000-726.900
56.88 4,916.04 2,151.32 6,483.96 11,400.00 SUPPLIES - CHLORINE590-547.000-727.500
92.96 1,477.79 5,608.79 19,522.21 21,000.00 SUPPLIES - FERROUS CHLORIDE590-547.000-727.600
69.44 1,222.50 847.50 2,777.50 4,000.00 SUPPLIES - DIOXIDE590-547.000-727.700
6.25 937.52 0.00 62.48 1,000.00 SUPPLIES - MISC. CHEMICALS590-547.000-727.800
3.35 3,382.89 0.00 117.11 3,500.00 BPU VEHICLE MAINT/SUPPLIES590-547.000-730.039

63.99 2,701.10 606.95 4,798.90 7,500.00 FUEL & LUBRICANTS590-547.000-740.000
0.00 2,250.00 0.00 0.00 2,250.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS590-547.000-742.000



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 6/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Expenditures

55.67 59,851.53 54,551.98 75,148.47 135,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-547.000-801.000
17.67 28,814.56 2,154.63 6,185.44 35,000.00 UTILITIES - GAS590-547.000-920.400
57.35 20,259.49 5,187.74 27,240.51 47,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE590-547.000-930.000
19.54 20,116.24 8.46 4,883.76 25,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - LABORATORY590-547.000-930.900
44.20 1,395.00 0.00 1,105.00 2,500.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS590-547.000-956.000
100.00 (107,721.10)0.00 107,721.10 0.00 DEPRECIATION590-547.000-968.000
38.56 55,292.00 6,314.00 34,708.00 90,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE590-547.000-969.000
0.00 268,000.00 0.00 0.00 268,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY590-547.000-970.000

45.08 485,042.97 95,428.31 398,170.03 883,213.00 Total Dept 547.000 - TREATMENT

14.87 5,056,972.71 162,807.81 883,578.29 5,940,551.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

27.26 (2,277,383.49)120,163.04 487,895.49 (1,789,488.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

14.87 5,056,972.71 162,807.81 883,578.29 5,940,551.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
33.04 2,779,589.22 282,970.85 1,371,473.78 4,151,063.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 7/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues
Dept 000.000

9.36 670,735.78 63,544.22 69,264.22 740,000.00 FEDERAL GRANT - CDBG PROJECT591-000.000-529.000-215006
36.67 8,866.21 925.90 5,133.79 14,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVENUE591-000.000-593.000
41.65 530,287.72 73,309.36 378,575.28 908,863.00 RESIDENTIAL SALES591-000.000-613.000
55.93 89,627.33 17,556.37 113,737.67 203,365.00 BUSINESS SALES591-000.000-614.000
55.86 187,700.72 40,588.67 237,567.28 425,268.00 COMMERCIAL SALES591-000.000-615.000
33.71 195,210.44 19,272.99 99,281.56 294,492.00 INDUSTRY SALES591-000.000-616.000
40.90 203,235.87 28,481.21 140,660.13 343,896.00 APARTMENT SALES591-000.000-619.000
159.82 (23,929.67)12,983.01 63,929.67 40,000.00 INTEREST591-000.000-665.000
100.00 (5,108.89)5,732.63 5,108.89 0.00 CHANGE IN INVESTMENTS591-000.000-669.000
100.00 (4,313.00)4,313.00 4,313.00 0.00 GAIN ON SALE OF PROPERTY591-000.000-673.001
57.69 2,877.09 617.75 3,922.91 6,800.00 LATE CHARGES591-000.000-679.000
100.00 (4,679.48)0.00 4,679.48 0.00 OTHER REFUNDS591-000.000-687.300
42.62 8,607.50 1,347.50 6,392.50 15,000.00 OTHER REVENUE - MISC OPERATING591-000.000-692.001
106.01 (1,322.32)2,947.64 23,322.32 22,000.00 OTHER REVENUE - MISC NON-OPERATING591-000.000-692.200

38.35 1,857,795.30 271,620.25 1,155,888.70 3,013,684.00 Total Dept 000.000

38.35 1,857,795.30 271,620.25 1,155,888.70 3,013,684.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

28.89 186,725.16 16,764.73 75,859.84 262,585.00 WAGES591-175.000-702.000
0.00 5,426.00 0.00 0.00 5,426.00 WAGES - PART TIME591-175.000-702.100

100.00 (67.97)0.00 67.97 0.00 OVERTIME PAY591-175.000-703.000
100.00 (709.61)466.82 709.61 0.00 SICK TIME PAY591-175.000-704.000
100.00 (6,127.92)797.32 6,127.92 0.00 VACATION TIME PAY591-175.000-705.000
100.00 (118.63)18.05 118.63 0.00 PERSONAL TIME PAY591-175.000-706.000
357.04 (1,156.69)535.83 1,606.69 450.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY591-175.000-710.000
32.09 82,474.80 7,764.66 38,972.20 121,447.00 HEALTH & LIFE INSURANCE591-175.000-715.000
51.05 23,916.04 4,730.96 24,939.96 48,856.00 RETIREMENT591-175.000-716.000
144.13 (860.47)0.00 2,810.47 1,950.00 WORKERS' COMPENSATION591-175.000-717.000
29.99 13,855.49 1,263.18 5,934.51 19,790.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA591-175.000-720.000
48.42 825.32 157.05 774.68 1,600.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE591-175.000-721.000
100.00 30,820.69 (5,286.67)(30,820.69)0.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE591-175.000-725.100
25.01 8,998.54 785.54 3,001.46 12,000.00 SUPPLIES591-175.000-726.000
0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 BPU VEHICLE MAINT/SUPPLIES591-175.000-730.039

100.00 (11.27)0.00 11.27 0.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS591-175.000-742.000
50.57 22,736.07 4,440.35 23,263.93 46,000.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES591-175.000-801.000
0.00 7,025.00 0.00 0.00 7,025.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - COMPUTER591-175.000-801.200

47.36 20,028.11 359.73 18,018.89 38,047.00 TECHNICAL SERVICES591-175.000-802.000
66.33 2,188.26 0.00 4,311.74 6,500.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS591-175.000-810.000
52.66 16,804.84 0.00 18,695.16 35,500.00 INSURANCE591-175.000-818.000
47.05 65,491.68 10,752.52 58,189.32 123,681.00 PILOT591-175.000-820.000
33.56 2,803.06 281.31 1,415.94 4,219.00 TELEPHONE591-175.000-850.000
28.77 1,780.81 152.22 719.19 2,500.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTION591-175.000-880.000
0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 PUBLISHING / NOTICES591-175.000-905.000

100.00 0.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 SPONSORSHIPS591-175.000-906.000
21.55 941.46 120.34 258.54 1,200.00 UTILITIES - GAS591-175.000-920.400
5.00 4,749.79 96.29 250.21 5,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE591-175.000-930.000

100.00 (25.00)0.00 25.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS591-175.000-955.000
100.00 (110.17)43.00 110.17 0.00 MISC. - CDL LICENSING/TESTING591-175.000-955.588



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 8/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Expenditures

19.40 3,223.81 0.00 776.19 4,000.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS591-175.000-956.000
100.00 (556.98)243.81 556.98 0.00 LODGING & MEALS591-175.000-956.200
48.10 622.85 111.55 577.15 1,200.00 BANK FEES591-175.000-960.000
100.00 (102.10)37.93 102.10 0.00 WRITE OFF BAD DEBT(S)591-175.000-963.000
100.00 (4,163.78)0.00 4,163.78 0.00 DEPRECIATION591-175.000-968.000
42.34 2,018.25 255.25 1,481.75 3,500.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE591-175.000-969.000
0.00 16,500.00 0.00 0.00 16,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY591-175.000-970.000

50.00 56,250.00 0.00 56,250.00 112,500.00 INTEREST EXPENSE591-175.000-993.000

36.34 565,945.44 48,641.77 323,030.56 888,976.00 Total Dept 175.000 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dept 543.000 - PRODUCTION
100.00 (1,103.15)185.00 1,103.15 0.00 WAGES591-543.000-702.000
100.00 (1,203.95)181.50 1,203.95 0.00 OVERTIME PAY591-543.000-703.000
100.00 (15.33)2.53 15.33 0.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY591-543.000-710.000
100.00 (133.40)20.11 133.40 0.00 RETIREMENT591-543.000-716.000
100.00 (161.25)23.47 161.25 0.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA591-543.000-720.000
100.00 (964.95)182.28 964.95 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE591-543.000-725.100

0.00 4,800.00 0.00 0.00 4,800.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES591-543.000-801.000
0.36 5,579.84 0.00 20.16 5,600.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE591-543.000-930.000

94.41 139.70 0.00 2,360.30 2,500.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS591-543.000-956.000
100.00 (10,311.70)0.00 10,311.70 0.00 DEPRECIATION591-543.000-968.000
35.47 19,359.00 1,907.00 10,641.00 30,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE591-543.000-969.000
0.00 97,500.00 0.00 0.00 97,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY591-543.000-970.000

19.17 113,484.81 2,501.89 26,915.19 140,400.00 Total Dept 543.000 - PRODUCTION

Dept 544.000 - DISTRIBUTION
23.08 174,496.28 7,623.65 52,352.72 226,849.00 WAGES591-544.000-702.000
100.00 (1,001.64)170.23 1,001.64 0.00 OVERTIME PAY591-544.000-703.000
100.00 (4.12)0.00 4.12 0.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY591-544.000-710.000

5.04 46,254.64 319.11 2,453.36 48,708.00 RETIREMENT591-544.000-716.000
22.15 13,503.55 563.28 3,841.45 17,345.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA591-544.000-720.000
45.66 29,056.26 3,974.49 24,415.74 53,472.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE591-544.000-725.100
4.71 8,099.63 172.89 400.37 8,500.00 SUPPLIES - OPERATIONS591-544.000-726.800

36.20 1,786.47 382.22 1,013.53 2,800.00 BPU VEHICLE MAINT/SUPPLIES591-544.000-730.039
75.13 1,429.89 606.94 4,320.11 5,750.00 FUEL & LUBRICANTS591-544.000-740.000
32.93 2,347.56 0.00 1,152.44 3,500.00 CLOTHING / UNIFORMS591-544.000-742.000
19.98 30,006.50 1,564.50 7,493.50 37,500.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES591-544.000-801.000
4.33 72,329.00 0.00 3,271.00 75,600.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE591-544.000-930.000

50.97 156,892.64 4,342.44 163,107.36 320,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT. - LEAD SERVICES 591-544.000-930.990
97.25 55.00 0.00 1,945.00 2,000.00 TRAINING & SEMINARS591-544.000-956.000
100.00 (56,955.91)0.00 56,955.91 0.00 DEPRECIATION591-544.000-968.000
58.77 1,237.00 381.00 1,763.00 3,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE591-544.000-969.000
0.00 3,123,915.00 0.00 0.00 3,123,915.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY591-544.000-970.000

8.28 3,603,447.75 20,100.75 325,491.25 3,928,939.00 Total Dept 544.000 - DISTRIBUTION

Dept 545.000 - PURIFICATION
25.05 41,268.74 1,879.13 13,793.26 55,062.00 WAGES591-545.000-702.000
100.00 (1,876.18)441.12 1,876.18 0.00 OVERTIME PAY591-545.000-703.000



*NOTE: Available Balance / Pct Budget Used does not reflect amounts encumbered.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF HILLSDALE 9/9Page:01/03/2024 02:13 PM
User: tbumpus
DB: Hillsdale PERIOD ENDING 11/30/2023

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 11/30/2023

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
11/30/2023

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2023-24

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Expenditures

24.96 337.66 16.91 112.34 450.00 HOLIDAY & OTHER PAY591-545.000-710.000
10.76 6,982.95 158.53 842.05 7,825.00 RETIREMENT591-545.000-716.000
23.97 3,202.33 140.56 1,009.67 4,212.00 EMPLOYER'S FICA591-545.000-720.000
42.79 9,303.80 1,129.90 6,959.20 16,263.00 MISCELLANEOUS FRINGE EXPENSE591-545.000-725.100
0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 SUPPLIES - POTASSIUM PERMAGANATE591-545.000-727.100

81.82 6,910.17 4,798.78 31,089.83 38,000.00 SUPPLIES - SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE591-545.000-727.200
46.91 2,389.20 0.00 2,110.80 4,500.00 SUPPLIES - FLOURIDE591-545.000-727.300
36.11 11,500.30 0.00 6,499.70 18,000.00 SUPPLIES - PHOSPHATE591-545.000-727.400
0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES591-545.000-801.000

22.73 2,318.24 400.44 681.76 3,000.00 UTILITIES - GAS591-545.000-920.400
4.34 15,497.32 0.00 702.68 16,200.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE591-545.000-930.000

100.00 (36,582.48)0.00 36,582.48 0.00 DEPRECIATION591-545.000-968.000
33.78 52,977.00 4,743.00 27,023.00 80,000.00 INTERDEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE591-545.000-969.000
0.00 42,000.00 0.00 0.00 42,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY591-545.000-970.000

41.97 178,729.05 13,708.37 129,282.95 308,012.00 Total Dept 545.000 - PURIFICATION

15.28 4,461,607.05 84,952.78 804,719.95 5,266,327.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

15.59 (2,603,811.75)186,667.47 351,168.75 (2,252,643.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

15.28 4,461,607.05 84,952.78 804,719.95 5,266,327.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
38.35 1,857,795.30 271,620.25 1,155,888.70 3,013,684.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

23.59 (7,858,197.38)507,012.50 1,500,151.38 (6,358,046.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

25.59 21,006,957.63 1,219,763.59 7,225,562.37 28,232,520.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
39.89 13,148,760.25 1,726,776.09 8,725,713.75 21,874,474.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



Amount
Number of
Accounts

Current $1,135,345.16 4616

Less than 30 Days $98,466.48 922

30 Days $29,827.46 367

60 Day $10,192.45 138

90 Day $17,395.56 120

180 days up to 1 year $27,856.32 105

1 year $21,454.82 74

2 years $1,827.86 10

Total Accounts Receivable $1,342,366.11 6352

Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities
Accounts Receivable Aging Report

December 31, 2023



 

$0.00

$200,000.00

$400,000.00

$600,000.00

$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,200,000.00

$1,400,000.00

$1,600,000.00

1/31/2023 2/28/2023 3/31/2023 4/30/2023 5/31/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2023 8/31/2023 9/30/2023 10/31/2023 11/30/2023 12/31/2023

Accounts Receivable Aging Amounts

Current Less than 30 Days 30 Days 60 Day 90 Day 180 + Days



 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

1/31/2023 2/28/2023 3/31/2023 4/30/2023 5/31/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2023 8/31/2023 9/30/2023 10/31/2023 11/30/2023 12/31/2023

Accounts Receivable Aging Number of Accounts

Current Less than 30 Days 30 Days 60 Day 90 Day 180 + Days



FYE 2023 Project # Budget Encumbered Spent Balance Notes

Distribution Automation & Monitoring 191002 50,000.00                                       -                     -                    50,000.00        

Voltage Upgrades 191006 -                                                   14,069.31         4,024.74           (18,094.05)       Will budget in FY25

Distribution Expansion & Upgrade 201001 50,000.00                                       -                     179.16              49,820.84        

Substation Equipment Updates 201002 44,638.71                                       -                     712.13              43,926.58        Rollover

Industrial Feeder Construction 201011 586,798.13                                     19,264.35         -                    567,533.78      Rollover

Power Plant Engine Hydronic System Replacment 201012 50,000.00                                       -                     50,000.00        

Industrial Substation Construction 215016 2,000,000.00                                  1,418,716.50    43,825.25        537,458.25      
Reclass Transformer down 

payment to prepaid

Case 580 Super N Extendahoe (50%) 215024 67,208.00                                       73,884.00        (6,676.00)         

BPU Warehouse Roof (50%) 215034 33,000.00                                       40,360.50         (7,360.50)         

Small Bucket Truck (4x4) 275,000.00                                     -                     275,000.00      

Backyard Machine 215033 100,000.00                                     -                     76,500.00        23,500.00        

GPS Software & Trimble GPS (50%) 3,250.00                                          3,250.00           

AMI Gateway Replacement (50%) 15,000.00                                       15,000.00        

Alarm System - Power Plant 12,000.00                                       12,000.00        

3,286,894.84                                  1,492,410.66    199,125.28      1,595,358.90   

Electric Fund (582)

Checking 1,224,645.21$     

Huntington Capital Investments 7,215,649.77$     

MSCPA Rate Stabilization Fund 509,909.30$         

Total Cash/Investments 8,950,204.28$     

Reserve Requirement (4,615,116.00)$    

Cash available for Capital Projects at 11-30-2023 4,335,088.28$                                

Electric Cash Reserve Requirements: Based on Rate Study 02/2022

Cash Flow Criteria

Percentage of item to 

be held as Cash or Cash 

equivalent  Cash Reserve Required 

Operation & Maintenance Less Depreciation Expense 12.3% 381,823.00$                                   

Purchase Power Expense 10.1% 866,246.00$                                   

Historical Rate Base 3.0% 1,334,717.00$                                

Five Year Capital Improvements - Net of bond proceeds 20.0% 2,032,330.00$                                

Total Cash Reserve Requirements 4,615,116.00$                                

Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities

Capital Projects

Electric Fund (582)

November 30, 2023

Cash/Investments Availability



FYE 2023 Project # Budget Encumbered Spent Balance Notes

Sewer Main Improvements 202001 -                                 18,268.49           256,731.51   (275,000.00)       Rollover

Replace MCC In Influent Bldg 213016 -                                 20,700.00           -                 (20,700.00)         Rollover

Brick Façade Repair - WWTP 213017 58,615.00                     -                       62,770.00     (4,155.00)            Rollover

Small Dump Truck 213018 104,000.00                   101,421.00         -                 2,579.00             

2023-7 S.A.D. Project (Westwood) 215005 940,000.00                   952,648.89         54,439.03     (67,087.92)         

CDBG Project 215006 420,000.00                   2,197,579.24     58,253.14     (1,835,832.38)    

RAS Pumps 1 & 2 215017 26,000.00                     -                       19,947.00     6,053.00             

Sewer/Water Service Truck 215018 9,002.00                        -                       20,998.00     (11,996.00)         Rollover

Inlet Building Door Replacement 215019 10,000.00                     -                       17,000.00     (7,000.00)            

Cat Walk Treads 215020 25,000.00                     -                       33,108.00     (8,108.00)            

Barber Lift Station Upgrades 215021 170,000.00                   -                       21,400.00     148,600.00         

Insight Vision Iris Mainline Camera for Van 215023 50,000.00                     -                       41,600.94     8,399.06             

Case 580 Super N Extendahoe (25%) 215024 40,000.00                     49,957.50     (9,957.50)            

Chlorine & Sulfur Dioxide Feeders 215025 14,000.00                     -                       11,620.00     2,380.00             Capitalized

Influent Pump #2 215028 34,000.00                     34,530.00           (530.00)               

Tertiary Pump #1 215029 30,000.00                     30,307.00           (307.00)               

Tertiary Pump #4 215030 30,000.00                     30,307.00           (307.00)               

North Sludge Storage Pump Replacement 215031 35,000.00                     -                       12,306.72     22,693.28           

BPU Warehouse Roof (25%) 215034 16,500.00                     20,180.25           (3,680.25)            

Tertiary Building Roof 215035 10,000.00                     8,493.00             1,507.00             

Inlet Building Roof 215036 7,934.00             (7,934.00)            

Aerator Gear Box (1 of 4) 215037 10,000.00                     -                       9,673.95       326.05                

Aerator Gear Box (2 of 4) 215038 10,000.00                     -                       9,673.96       326.04                

Inline Primary Sludge Grinder Replacement 10,000.00                     -                       10,000.00           

Sludge Rotary Lobe Pumps Replacement 10,000.00                     -                       10,000.00           

1/2 Ton Pickup 20,000.00                     -                       20,000.00           

Enclosed Trailer for Camera 10,000.00                     -                       10,000.00           

New Trailer for Trench Boxes (50%) 10,000.00                     -                       10,000.00           

GPS Software & Trimble GPS (25%) 1,625.00                        1,625.00             

AMI Gateway Replacement (25%) 7,500.00                        7,500.00             

2,111,242.00                3,422,368.87     679,479.75   (1,990,606.62)    

Sewer Fund (590)

Checking 444,380.79$        

Huntington/Michigan Class - Debt Service 613,837.79           

Huntington - Bond Reserve 615,518.32           

Michigan Class Investment 1,116,497.19       

Michigan Class Restricted Bond Funds 2,160,573.00       

Total Cash/Investments 4,950,807.09$     

Reserve Requirement (1,236,324.00)$    

Cash available for Capital Projects at 11-30-2023 3,714,483.09$             

Sewer Cash Reserve Requirements: Based on Rate Study 02/2022

Cash Flow Criteria

Percentage of item to 

be held as Cash or Cash 

equivalent Cash Reserve Required

Operation & Maintenance Less Depreciation Expense 12.30% 155,100.00$                 

Historical Rate Base 1.00% 259,726.00$                 

Current Portion of Debt Service Reserve 83.70% 447,250.00$                 

Five Year Capital Improvements - Net of bond proceeds 20% 374,248.00$                 

Total Cash Reserve Requirements 1,236,324.00$             

Cash/Investments Availability

Hillsdale Board of Public Utilities

Capital Projects

Sewer Fund (590)

November 30, 2023



 

FYE 2023 Project # Budget Encumbered Spent Balance Notes

AMI Water Meters/Nodes 181005 45,000.00                     -                       10,469.41        34,530.59          

Well Maintenance 213002 47,500.00                     -                       1,217.33           46,282.67          

Small Dump Truck 213018 104,000.00                   101,421.00        -                     2,579.00            

2023-7 S.A.D Project (Westwood) 215005 1,925,000.00               1,242,919.05     294,480.74      387,600.21        

CDBG Project 215006 250,000.00                   1,147,355.73     117,038.14      (1,014,393.87)   

Sewer/Water Service Truck 215018 9,002.00                       -                       20,998.00        (11,996.00)         Rollover

Case 580 Super N Extendahoe (25%) 215024 40,000.00                     -                       49,957.50        (9,957.50)           

BPU Warehouse Roof (25%) 215034 16,500.00                     20,180.25           -                     (3,680.25)           

1/2 Ton Pickup 20,000.00                     20,000.00          

Engineering for Well Standby Generator 50,000.00                     -                       -                     50,000.00          

New Trailer for Trench Boxes (50%) 10,000.00                     -                       -                     10,000.00          

Pull Behind Compressor 48,000.00                     -                       -                     48,000.00          

Effluent Mag Meter 30,000.00                     -                       -                     30,000.00          

High Service VFD 12,000.00                     -                       -                     12,000.00          

GPS Software & Trimble GPS (25%) 1,625.00                       -                       -                     1,625.00            

AMI Gateway Replacement (25%) 7,500.00                       -                       -                     7,500.00            

2,616,127.00               2,511,876.03     494,161.12      (389,910.15)      

Water FUND (591) 

Checking 298,947.08$        

Huntington Capital Improvement Investment 478,381.16          

Michigan Class Restricted Bond Funds 2,492,971.48       

Total Cash/Investments 3,270,299.72$     

Reserve Requirement (1,014,581.00)$   

Cash available for Capital Projects at 11-30-2023 2,255,718.72$             

Water Cash Reserve Requirements: Based on Rate Study 02/2022

Cash Flow Criteria

Percentage of item to be 

held as Cash or Cash 

equivalent Cash Reserve Required

Operation & Maintenance Less Depreciation Expense 12.30% 196,029.00$                

Historical Rate Base 0.50% 297,132.00$                

Five Year Capital Improvements - Net of bond proceeds 20% 521,420.00$                

Total Cash Reserve Requirements 1,014,581.00$             

Cash/Investments Availability

BPU

Capital Projects

Water Fund (591)

November 30, 2023



Hillsdale BPU Board  
Agenda Item Summary 

Meeting Date: January 9, 2023 

Agenda Item: Action Item 

SUBJECT: Tetra Tech – Hillsdale College Sanitary Sewer Study 

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY: BPU Director Dave Mackie 

Due to the ongoing expansion of the Hillsdale College campus, both the College and the BPU are in 
agreement that a sanitary sewer study is needed to address the impact of development on the City’s current 
sanitary sewer infrastructure.  The attached Tetra Tech proposal identifies both the scope and cost 
($38,500) of the study. Through discussions, the College has agreed to reimburse the BPU for the complete 
cost of the study, which will need to be approved by budget amendment. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommend to City Council approving the Tetra Tech sanitary sewer study to be reimbursed by 
Hillsdale College. 



 
 

Tetra Tech, Inc. 
1136 Oak Valley Drive, Suite 100, Ann Arbor, MI 48108 

Tel  734.665.6000  www.tetratech.com 

October 2, 2023  
  
 
Mr. Jeff Gier  
Mrs. Kris Bauer  
City of Hillsdale BPU  
45 Monroe Street  
Hillsdale, MI  49242  
  
RE: Hillsdale College Sanitary Sewer Plan  
  
Dear Mr. Gier and Mrs. Bauer;  
  
Thank you for meeting with us and Mr. Billington from Hillsdale College on September 25, 
2023.  We discussed the College’s vision to grow and its impact on the City’s sanitary sewer 
system.  We have further summarized our understanding of the project below and this letter 
serves as our proposal to assist the Hillsdale BPU with this important project.    
 
We also understand that much of the project cost will come from the College.  As discussed in 
our meeting, because the work involves planning for the Hillsdale BPU infrastructure, it is 
advantageous for Tetra Tech to be under contract with Hillsdale BPU so there is no confusion to 
any party that the best interests of the BPU are being served.  
  
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING  
 
Hillsdale College has ambitious plans to grow in the near and long term.  However, these plans 
continue to evolve and are not yet finalized.  Some growth plans discussed at our meeting 
include:  
 

o Construction or expansion of 3 or 4 academic buildings  
o Growth of student population from 1,500 to as many as 2,500 and associated housing  
o Expansion of Student Union  
o Expansion of hotel  
o Potential purchase of additional properties to expand the campus  

  
We understand that the College’s architects will plan for sewer service across the College-owned 
parcels.  However, this growth will send additional flows to the BPU’s sanitary sewer.  In 
general, the BPU’s sanitary sewer flows south to the St. Joseph River Interceptor and then 
northwest to the WWTP.  One pump station east of the intersection of Hillsdale and Barber will 
be significantly impacted.  The additional flow from growth has the potential to impact this pump 
station and these downstream sewers.   
 
One concept discussed at length at our meeting was constructing a new sewer to flow in a 
westerly direction from the campus along Galloway which would cross the St. Joseph River and 
discharge to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).  This routing would avoid discharging 



 

2 

additional flow to the existing sewers and provide the most flexibility for the College’s still 
developing future plans.  
 
The project requested would evaluate the approximate future needs of the College, identify the 
impact on the City’s sewer infrastructure, identify alternatives to convey the increased flow to 
treatment, prepare opinions of probable cost for the work, and summarize the work in a report.  
 
The College and BPU wishes to have the analysis completed this fall to guide capital planning 
schedules that require cost data in winter and spring 2024.  
  
SCOPE OF WORK  
 
Tetra Tech proposes the following scope of work:  

1. Attend a kickoff meeting with Hillsdale College and BPU staff to confirm the vision of 
the project and exchange needed information.  

2. Review water consumption records and make projections on what future growth may add 
to sanitary sewer demand.  

3. Evaluate the impact of future growth on the existing sewer system.  This step can be 
complex involving performing sewer flow monitoring and creating computer 
models.  However, we have budgeted to only do a cursory overview as the option to 
convey College flow in a new sanitary sewer along Galloway will largely avoid the 
existing BPU sewer system.  A pump station improvement will still be needed which will 
likely include increased pumping capacity and new force main discharge.  

4. Conceptually identify the size of a new sanitary sewer along Galloway to the WWTP and 
a new pump station.  

5. Prepare an opinion of cost for the new sewer and pump station.  

6. Summarize the above in a brief report (perhaps 10 to 15 pages of text) and the following 
figures:  

a. Potential growth areas and assumed flows.  

b. Conceptual sewer and pump station size and route  

7. Attend one meeting with BPU and Hillsdale College to review the draft report.  We will 
finalize the report upon completion of this meeting.  We have assumed approximately 
five (5) hard copies of the report and a PDF will be delivered.  

  
Optional Services:  
 
The following optional services were discussed and can be perfomed, if authorized:  
 

a. College Design Meetings – Mr. Billington requested that Tetra Tech be available for 
periodic meetings with the building design team.  We have budgeted for 4, 2-hour 
meetings onsite (including travel and miscellaneous follow-up tasks).  

b. Flow Monitoring – While the approach above will not likely require flow monitoring, the 
project team could identify an alternative where additional data would be helpful.  This 



3 

option would provide the monitoring of flow in two sewers for three months along with a 
recording rain gauge.  

ASSUMPTIONS  

 Hillsdale BPU will provide some basic sewer data (likely within a GIS) and WWTP
construction records.

 Hillsdale College architects will provide restroom or other growth projections for
expanded academic buildings

 Hillsdale College will provide some approximation (or confirmation of assumed growth
prepared by Tetra Tech)

SCHEDULE  

Tetra Tech is prepared to begin work immediately upon authorization.  We project having the 
draft report within eight (8) weeks of holding the kickoff meeting and receipt of all information. 

COMPENSATION  

We request a budget of $38,500 for the work described within excluding the optional 
services.  Work will be performed with our standard hourly rates and this budget will not be 
exceeded without BPU’s prior, written consent.  Our Standard Terms and Conditions are attached 
and considered a part of this proposal.    

Optional services will be $8,000 for the meetings and $35,000 for the flow monitoring (and 
related analysis).   

EXECUTION  

If you agree with this proposal, please sign in the space provided to indicate your 
acceptance.  Tetra Tech is pleased to attend a meeting of the BPU to review this proposal. 

Tetra Tech appreciates the opportunity to provide this proposal and continue our long history of 
service to Hillsdale.  We are excited about the project and have the vision and commitment to 
make this a successful project.  

Sincerely;  

Brian M. Rubel, PE  
Sr. Vice President  

PROPOSAL ACCEPTED BY  

TITLE:    DATE: 



 

 Page 1 of 2  Tt Terms & Conditions, Rev 04/01/17 

Tetra Tech of Michigan, PC 

Engineering Services Standard Terms & Conditions 
 

Services Consultant will perform services for the Project as set forth in Attachment A and 
in accordance with these Terms & Conditions. Consultant has developed the Project 
scope of service, schedule, and compensation based on available information and 
various assumptions. The Client acknowledges that adjustments to the schedule and 
compensation may be necessary based on the actual circumstances encountered by 
Consultant in performing their services. Consultant is authorized to proceed with services 
upon receipt of an executed Agreement. 

Compensation In consideration of the services performed by Consultant, the Client shall 
pay Consultant in the manner set forth above. The parties acknowledge that terms of 
compensation are based on an orderly and continuous progress of the Project. 
Compensation shall be equitably adjusted for delays or extensions of time beyond the 
control of Consultant. Where total project compensation has been separately identified 
for various tasks, Consultant may adjust the amounts allocated between tasks as the 
work progresses so long as the total compensation amount for the project is not 
exceeded. 

Fee Definitions The following fee types shall apply to methods of payment: 

 Salary Cost is defined as the individual’s base salary plus customary and statutory 
benefits. Statutory benefits shall be as prescribed by law and customary benefits 
shall be as established by Consultant employment policy. 

 Cost Plus is defined as the individual’s base salary plus actual overhead plus 
professional fee. Overhead shall include customary and statutory benefits, 
administrative expense, and non-project operating costs. 

 Lump Sum is defined as a fixed price amount for the scope of services described. 

 Standard Rates is defined as individual time multiplied by standard billing rates for 
that individual. 

 Subcontracted Services are defined as Project-related services provided by other 
parties to Consultant. 

 Reimbursable Expenses are defined as actual expenses incurred in connection 
with the Project. 

Payment Terms Consultant shall submit invoices at least once per month for services 
performed and Client shall pay the full invoice amount within 30 days of the invoice date. 
Invoices will be considered correct if not questioned in writing within 10 days of the invoice 
date. Client payment to Consultant is not contingent on arrangement of project financing 
or receipt of funds from a third party. In the event the Client disputes the invoice or any 
portion thereof, the undisputed portion shall be paid to Consultant based on terms of this 
Agreement. Invoices not in dispute and unpaid after 30 days shall accrue interest at the 
rate of one and one-half percent per month (or the maximum percentage allowed by law, 
whichever is the lesser). Invoice payment delayed beyond 60 days shall give Consultant 
the right to stop work until payments are current. Non-payment beyond 70 days shall be 
just cause for termination by Consultant. 

Additional Services The Client and Consultant acknowledge that additional services 
may be necessary for the Project to address issues that may not be known at Project 
initiation or that may be required to address circumstances that were not foreseen. In that 
event, Consultant shall notify the Client of the need for additional services and the Client 
shall pay for such additional services in an amount and manner as the parties may 
subsequently agree.  

Site Access The Client shall obtain all necessary approvals for Consultant to access the 
Project site(s). 

Underground Facilities Consultant and/or its authorized subcontractor will conduct 
research and perform site reconnaissance in an effort to discover the location of existing 
underground facilities prior to developing boring plans, conducting borings, or undertaking 
invasive subsurface investigations. Client recognizes that accurate drawings or 
knowledge of the location of such facilities may not exist, or that research may reveal as-
built drawings or other documents that may inaccurately show, or not show, the location 
of existing underground facilities. In such events, except for the sole negligence, willful 
misconduct, or practice not conforming to the Standard of Care cited in this Agreement, 
Client agrees to indemnify and hold Consultant and/or its Subcontractor harmless from 
any and all property damage, injury, or economic loss arising or allegedly arising from 
borings or other subsurface penetrations. 

Regulated Wastes Client is responsible for the disposal of all regulated wastes 
generated as a result of services provided under this Agreement. Consultant and Client 
mutually agree that Consultant assumes no responsibility for the waste or disposal 
thereof. 

Contractor Selection Consultant may make recommendations concerning award of 
construction contracts and products. The Client acknowledges that the final selection of 
construction contractors and products is the Client’s sole responsibility. 

Ownership of Documents Drawings, specifications, reports, programs, manuals, or 
other documents, including all documents on electronic media, prepared under this 
Agreement are instruments of service and are, and shall remain, the property of 
Consultant. Record documents of service shall be based on the printed copy. Consultant 
will retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, including the copyright 
thereto. Consultant will furnish documents electronically; however, the Client releases 
Consultant from any liability that may result from documents used in this form. Consultant 
shall not be held liable for reuse of documents or modifications thereof by the Client or its 
representatives for any purpose other than the original intent of this Agreement, without 
written authorization of and appropriate compensation to Consultant. 

Standard of Care Services provided by Consultant under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised 
by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances. 
Consultant makes no warranty or guaranty, either express or implied. Consultant will not 
be liable for the cost of any omission that adds value to the Project. 

Period of Service This Agreement shall remain in force until completion and acceptance 
of the services or until terminated by mutual agreement. Consultant shall perform the 
services for the Project in a timely manner consistent with sound professional practice. 
Consultant will strive to perform its services according to the Project schedule set forth in 
the provisions for Scope of Work/Fee/Schedule in Attachment A. The services of each 
task shall be considered complete when deliverables for the task have been presented 
to the Client. Consultant shall be entitled to an extension of time and compensation 
adjustment for any delay beyond Consultant control. 

Insurance and Liability Consultant shall maintain the following insurance and coverage 
limits during the period of service. The Client will be named as an additional insured on 
the Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance policies. 

Worker’s Compensation – as required by applicable state statute 
Commercial General Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, including 
death and property damage, and $2,000,000 in the aggregate 
Automobile Liability –$1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage 
Professional Liability (E&O) - $1,000,000 each claim and in the aggregate 

The Client shall make arrangements for Builder’s Risk, Protective Liability, Pollution 
Prevention, and other specific insurance coverage warranted for the Project in amounts 
appropriate to the Project value and risks. Consultant shall be a named insured on those 
policies where Consultant may be at risk. The Client shall obtain the counsel of others in 
setting insurance limits for construction contracts.  

Indemnification Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Client and its 
employees from any liability, settlements, loss, or costs (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs of defense) to the extent caused solely by the negligent act, error, or 
omission of Consultant in the performance of services under this Agreement. If such 
damage results in part by the negligence of another party, Consultant shall be liable only 
to the extent of Consultant’s proportional negligence. 

Dispute Resolution The Client and Consultant agree that they shall diligently pursue 
resolution of all disagreements within 45 days of either party’s written notice using a 
mutually acceptable form of mediated dispute resolution prior to exercising their rights 
under law. Consultant shall continue to perform services for the Project and the Client 
shall pay for such services during the dispute resolution process unless the Client issues 
a written notice to suspend work. Causes of action between the parties to this Agreement 
shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statutes of repose and/or limitation 
shall commence not later than the date of substantial completion. 

Suspension of Work The Client may suspend services performed by Consultant with 
cause upon fourteen (14) days written notice. Consultant shall submit an invoice for 
services performed up to the effective date of the work suspension and the Client shall 
pay Consultant all outstanding invoices within fourteen (14) days. If the work suspension 
exceeds thirty (30) days from the effective work suspension date, Consultant shall be 
entitled to renegotiate the Project schedule and the compensation terms for the Project. 

Termination The Client or Consultant may terminate services on the Project upon seven 
(7) days written notice without cause or in the event of substantial failure by the other 
party to fulfill its obligations of the terms hereunder. Consultant shall submit an invoice for 
services performed up to the effective date of termination and the Client shall pay 
Consultant all outstanding invoices, together with all costs arising out of such termination, 
within fourteen (14) days. The Client may withhold an amount for services that may be in 
dispute provided that the Client furnishes a written notice of the basis for their dispute and 
that the amount withheld represents a reasonable value. 



 Page 2 of 2  Tt Terms & Conditions, Rev 04/01/17 

Authorized Representative The Project Manager assigned to the Project by Consultant 
is authorized to make decisions or commitments related to the project on behalf of 
Consultant. Only authorized representatives of Consultant are authorized to execute 
contracts and/or work orders on behalf of Consultant. The Client shall designate a 
representative with similar authority. Email messages between Client and members of 
the project team shall not be construed as an actual or proposed contractual amendment 
of the services, compensation or payment terms of the Agreement. 

Project Requirements The Client shall confirm the objectives, requirements, constraints, 
and criteria for the Project at its inception. If the Client has established design standards, 
they shall be furnished to Consultant at Project inception. Consultant will review the Client 
design standards and may recommend alternate standards considering the standard of 
care provision. 

Independent Consultant Consultant is and shall be at all times during the term of this 
Agreement an independent consultant and not an employee or agent of the Client. 
Consultant shall retain control over the means and methods used in performing 
Consultant’s services and may retain subconsultants to perform certain services as 
determined by Consultant.   

Compliance with Laws Consultant shall perform its services consistent with sound 
professional practice and endeavor to incorporate laws, regulations, codes, and 
standards applicable at the time the work is performed. In the event that standards of 
practice change during the Project, Consultant shall be entitled to additional 
compensation where additional services are needed to conform to the standard of 
practice. 

Permits and Approvals Consultant will assist the Client in preparing applications and 
supporting documents for the Client to secure permits and approvals from agencies 
having jurisdiction over the Project. The Client agrees to pay all application and review 
fees. 

Limitation of Liability In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project to 
both the Client and Consultant, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of Consultant and its 
subconsultants to the Client and to all construction contractors and subcontractors on the 
project for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims 
expenses from any cause or causes, so that the total aggregate liability of Consultant and 
its subconsultants to all those named shall not exceed $50,000 or the amount of 
Consultant’s total fee paid by the Client for services under this Agreement, whichever is 
the greater.  Such claims and causes include, but are not limited to negligence, 
professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty. 

Consequential Damages Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, neither the Client nor Consultant, their respective 
officers, directors, partners, employees, contractors or subconsultants shall be liable to 
the other or shall make any claim for any incidental, indirect or consequential damages 
arising out of or connected in any way to the project or to this Agreement.  This mutual 
waiver of consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of 
profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation or any other consequential 
damages that either party may have incurred from any cause of action including 
negligence, strict liability, breach of contract and breach of strict or implied warranty.  Both 
the Client and Consultant shall require similar waivers of consequential damages 
protecting all the entities or persons named herein in all contracts and subcontracts with 
others involved in this project or with this Agreement. 

Waiver of Subrogation Consultant shall endeavor to obtain a waiver of subrogation 
against the Client, if requested in writing by the Client, provided that Consultant will not 
increase its exposure to risk and Client will pay the cost associated with any premium 
increase or special fees. 

Environmental Matters The Client warrants that they have disclosed all potential 
hazardous materials that may be encountered on the Project. In the event unknown 
hazardous materials are encountered, Consultant shall be entitled to additional 
compensation for appropriate actions to protect the health and safety of its personnel, 
and for additional services required to comply with applicable laws. The Client shall 
indemnify Consultant from any claim related to hazardous materials encountered on the 
Project except for those events caused by negligent acts of Consultant. 

Cost Opinions Consultant shall prepare cost opinions for the Project based on historical 
information that represents the judgment of a qualified professional. The Client and 
Consultant acknowledge that actual costs may vary from the cost opinions prepared and 
that Consultant offers no guarantee related to the Project cost. 

Contingency Fund The Client acknowledges the potential for changes in the work during 
construction and the Client agrees to include a contingency fund in the Project budget 
appropriate to the potential risks and uncertainties associated with the Project. Consultant 
may offer advice concerning the value of the contingency fund; however, Consultant shall 
not be liable for additional costs that the Client may incur beyond the contingency fund 
they select unless such additional cost results from a negligent act, error, or omission 
related to services performed by Consultant. 

Safety Consultant shall be responsible solely for the safety precautions or programs of 
its employees and no other party. 

Information from Other Parties The Client and Consultant acknowledge that Consultant 
will rely on information furnished by other parties in performing its services under the 
Project. Consultant shall not be liable for any damages that may be incurred by the Client 
in the use of third party information. 

Force Majeure Consultant shall not be liable for any damages caused by any delay that 
is beyond Consultant’s reasonable control, including but not limited to unavoidable delays 
that may result from any acts of God, strikes, lockouts, wars, acts of terrorism, riots, acts 
of governmental authorities, extraordinary weather conditions or other natural 
catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of 
either party. 

Waiver of Rights The failure of either party to enforce any provision of these terms and 
conditions shall not constitute a waiver of such provision nor diminish the right of either 
party to the remedies of such provision. 

Warranty Consultant warrants that it will deliver services under the Agreement within the 
standard of care. No other expressed or implied warranty is provided by Consultant. 

Severability Any provision of these terms later held to be unenforceable shall be deemed 
void and all remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect. In such event, the 
Client and Consultant will work in good faith to replace an invalid provision with one that 
is valid with as close to the original meaning as possible. 

Survival All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of these terms that allocate responsibility or liability between the Client and 
Consultant shall survive the completion or termination of services for the Project. 

Assignments Neither party shall assign its rights, interests, or obligations under the 
Agreement without the express written consent of the other party. 

Governing Law The terms of Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state 
where the services are performed provided that nothing contained herein shall be 
interpreted in such a manner as to render it unenforceable under the laws of the state in 
which the Project resides. 

Collection Costs In the event that legal action is necessary to enforce the payment 
provisions of this Agreement if Client fails to make payment within sixty (60) days of the 
invoice date, Consultant shall be entitled to collect from the Client any judgment or 
settlement sums due, reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, and expenses incurred by 
Consultant in connection therewith and, in addition, the reasonable value of Consultant’s 
time and expenses spent in connection with such collection action, computed at 
Consultant’s prevailing fee schedule and expense policies. 

Equal Employment Opportunity Consultant will comply with federal regulations 
pertaining to Equal Employment Opportunity. Consultant is in compliance with applicable 
local, state, and federal regulations concerning minority hiring. It is Consultant’s policy to 
ensure that applicants and employees are treated equally without regard to race, creed, 
sex, color, religion, veteran status, ancestry, citizenship status, national origin, marital 
status, sexual orientation, or disability. Consultant expressly assures all employees, 
applicants for employment, and the community of its continuous commitment to equal 
opportunity and fair employment practices. 

Attorney Fees Should there be any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted 
in this contract, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, 
disbursements, and reasonable attorney fees from the other party.  The party that is 
awarded a net recovery against the other party shall be deemed the substantially 
prevailing party unless such other party has previously made a bona fide offer of payment 
in settlement and the amount of recovery is the same or less than the amount offered in 
settlement.  Reasonable attorney fees may be recovered regardless of the forum in which 
the dispute is heard, including an appeal. 

Third Party Beneficiaries Nothing in this Agreement shall create a contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the Client or 
the Consultant.  The Consultant’s services under this Agreement are being performed 
solely for the Client’s benefit, and no other entity shall have any claim against the 
Consultant because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services 
hereunder.  The Client agrees to include a provision in all contracts with contractors and 
other entities involved in this project to carry out the intent of this paragraph. 

Lien Rights Consultant may file a lien against the Client’s property in the event that the 
Client does not make payment within the time prescribed in this Agreement. The Client 
agrees that services by Consultant are considered property improvements and the Client 
waives the right to any legal defense to the contrary. 

Captions  The captions herein are for convenience only and are not to be construed as 
part of this Agreement, nor shall the same be construed as defining or limiting in any way 
the scope or intent of the provisions hereof. 



City of Hillsdale BPU 

Agenda Item Summary 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM #: New Business 

SUBJECT:  John Deere Backhoe Service Agreement 

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY STAFF:  Jeff Gier, Director of Water and Wastewater 

Project Background: 

We purchased the new backhoe from AIS in December.  This is a three year service agreement 

where AIS keeps track of the hours on the machine and will alert us of any codes that may pop 

up.  AIS will perform all suggested manufacturer’s service to machine through this agreement. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff supports award by the Board to enter the service agreement with AIS at a total cost of 

$6,100.74 for three years. 



 Quote valid without signature until __01/20/2024__ 

 

 

 

  

 
Agreement between AIS and City of Hillsdale    

Professional Service  
- Service backed by years of experience, perfomed by qualified technicians  

- Preventative maintenance plans carefully drafted specifically for your machine make 

and model , utilitzing years of product research and knowledge within our 

organization to pin point potentional problems and address them during maintenance 

to prevent costly down time and unescessary repairs caused by commonly 

overlooked service items. 

- Outer air filters changed at 500hr intervals  

- Inner / outer air filters, cabin air filters, and crankcase breather filters changed at 

1000hr interval  

- Valve adjustments performed at manufacturer recommended intervals  

- Protect your machines warranty by having all service records and oil sample results 

needed for claims accessible at a moments notice.  

- Receive a detailed inspection noting any minor or major issues that were found and 

have the option to schedule follow up repairs  

Ease of scheduling  
- With a signed agreement on file all machine information and agreement terms are 

entered into our machine tracking system that is monitored full time by Fleet 

Solutions personell . 

- Direct lines of communication available to set up service , report any issues , request 

past service documents, or any other inquiries you may have  

The Fleet solution team can be reach by Phone (517)-449-8612 or by Email at 

Fleetsolutions@aisequip.com . 

Predictable accounting  
- With a signed agreement on file the flate rate prices will be honored for the term of 

the agreement, and will not be subject to inflation 

- All travel , labor , parts , oils and normal top off fluids are all included in flat rate 

prices. 

Customer Responsibilities  
- Perform Daily and Weekly maintenance in accordance with the manufacturer’s 

guidelines.  

- Have the machine available for AIS to perform Maintenance at a mutually agreed 

upon time and location. 

- Monitor machine hours and report to AIS when the machine is coming due. 

- No additional discounts apply  

          Machine serial:X06027    Model:320P 

               Contact Name:  Jeff Gier    Phone: 517-437-3387 Email:Jgier@hillsdalebpu.com 

 

Term :  3 Year  New agreement 

    

Price per machine hour: $8.13 

 

    Year 1 250hr: $2,033.58  

    Year 2 500hr: $2,033.58 

    Year 3 750hr: $2,033.58  

 

PURCHASER’S SIGNATURE  AIS REPRESENATIVE 

_____________________________  /     ___ __Jaccob Lange_____________ 
 
DATE ____________________      Quote approved by:  ____trb________    

mailto:Fleetsolutions@aisequip.com


City of Hillsdale BPU 

Agenda Item Summary 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM #: New Business 

SUBJECT:  HomeServe USA Corporation Service Line Agreement 

BACKGROUND PROVIDED BY STAFF:  Jeff Gier, Director of Water and Wastewater 

Project Background: 

Staff has researched options to offer our water and sewer customers an insurance policy to 

cover the costs of failed service lines.  HomeServe USA Corp. offers customers the option to 

purchase a service plan as described in the agreement.  They handle all marketing and billing at 

no cost to the BPU.  They are recognized through the National League of Cities. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff supports award by the Board to enter into this agreement with HomeServe USA 

Corporation for an initial three year term. 



Savings Solutions for Aging Infrastructure

NLC Service Line Warranty Program

Mike Chambers
mike.chambers@homeserveusa.com
724-678-6075



NLC SAVINGS AND SOLUTIONS PROGRAMS

The NLC Service Line Warranty Program is one 
of seven Savings & Solutions Programs that are 
offered through corporate partnerships

NLC launched its partnership with Utility Service 
Partners in 2010, and now there are 1,000+ 
participating municipalities and utilities

2



UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS

EXPERIENCE REPUTATION PARTNERSHIP

This award underscores one of the primary 
reasons the National League of Cities selected 
USP as a partner and extended our  agreement 
for another five years. The organization's 
exemplary record of customer service and 
transparency is what has driven the success of 
this partnership over the years.

— Clarence Anthony, Executive Director 
National League of Cities 



AGING INFRASTRUCTURE IS PROBLEMATIC FOR CITIES & HOMEOWNERS

• Lateral lines are subjected to the same elements as 
public lines -ground shifting, fluctuating temperatures, tree 
root penetration, corrosion and more

• Failed lines waste thousands of gallons of water and present 
an environmental hazard

• Common homeowner misconceptions the municipality is 
responsible for maintenance of the water and sewer lines 
on their property or repairs are covered by their 
homeowner’s policy

4



FINANCIAL SHOCK – AN UNPLANNED EXPENSE

78% of homeowners surveyed believe the utility 
provider should educate them on repairs and 
preventative measures

4 out of 10 Americans can’t afford a $400 
emergency expense (and would have to sell 
something or take out a loan to cover it).*

40%

59% of homeowners surveyed have had a home 
repair emergency in the past year



NLC SERVICE LINE WARRANTY PROGRAM BENEFITS 

• Only Service Line Program Endorsed by the National League of Cities
• No cost for the Municipality to participate

• Ongoing Revenue Stream for the Municipality

• Educates homeowners about their lateral line responsibilities

• Free Public Awareness Campaign 

• Peace of Mind - with one toll-free call a reputable plumber is dispatched

• All repairs performed to code by local licensed contractors

• Contractors undergo rigorous vetting process to ensure quality service



NLC SERVICE LINE WARRANTY PROGRAM AND WHAT IT COVERS

WATER/WELL LINE 
COVERAGE

SEWER/SEPTIC LATERAL 
COVERAGE

• Educating homeowners about their service line responsibilities
• Up to $8,500 coverage per repair incident
• Includes coverage for thawing of frozen external water lines
• No annual or lifetime limits, deductibles, service fees, forms, or paperwork
• 24/7/365 availability
• Repairs made only by licensed, local contractors
• Affordable rates and multiple payment methods

Homeowner repair protection for leaking, clogged or broken water and sewer 
lines from the point of utility connection to the home exterior

Coverage includes:



NLC SERVICE LINE WARRANTY PROGRAM AND WHAT IT COVERS

Homeowner repair protection for in-home 
water supply lines and in-home sewer lines 
and all drain lines connected to the main sewer 
stack that are broken or leaking inside the 
home after the point of entry

Coverage includes:

• Up to $3,000 coverage per repair incident. 
• Repair of clogged toilets 
• Includes coverage for broken or leaking water, sewer, or drain lines under the slab or 

basement floor
• No annual or lifetime limits, deductibles, service fees, forms, or paperwork
• 24/7/365 availability
• Repairs made only by licensed, local contractors
• Affordable rates and multiple payment methods



MARKETING APPROACH

• No Public Funds are used in marketing, distribution, or administration of the program. 

• Only market by direct mail, no telemarketing 

• Would never mail without your review and approval of marketing material before each 
and every campaign 

• Limited mailing campaigns per year

• Consumer friendly marketing

• Always voluntary for the homeowner 

• Consumers can enroll one of three ways: 

• Calling into our toll free number that is provided on the mailing;

• Returning the bottom of the letter to us in the self addressed stamped envelope 
provided

• Visiting our consumer website www.slwofa.com at any time 



SOLUTIONS FOR MUNICIPALITIES AND THEIR HOMEOWNERS

• More than 1,100 municipal and utility 
partnerships

• Currently serving over 4.5 million 
customers 

• Saved customers over $520 million in 
repair costs over the past 3 years

• Consistent customer satisfaction 
rating of 4.8 out of 5

• 9 of every 10 customers surveyed have 
recommended the program to friends, 
family and neighbors

10



HomeServeRevenue share and other 

benefits to city

• Non-tax revenue can be estimated at $0.50 per product, 
per month

• Cities utilize funds for important initiatives including:
✓ Infrastructure improvements
✓ Low-income assistance/community charities
✓ Partially offset rate increases

• Saves money for residents that can be re-invested in the 
local economy

• Reduces calls to the city

• Timely repairs reduce water loss from line breaks



CURRENT MICHIGAN PARTNERS

City of Lathrup Village          

City of Roseville

City of Clawson

City of Highland Park

City of Center Line

City of Royal Oak

City of Berkley

City of Pleasant Ridge

City of Ferndale

City of Howell

City of Perry

City of Hazel Park

City of Lincoln Park

Village of Beverly Hills
City of St Clair Shores
City of Huntington Woods
City of Saline
Village of Paw Paw
City of Big Rapids
City of Hamtramck
Village of Kalkaska
Village of St Charles
City of Bangor
City of Burton
City of Keego Harbor
Village of Decatur
City of Rochester

12



www.servicelinepartner.com

QUESTIONS?

For more information contact:

Mike Chambers
mike.chambers@homeserveusa.com
724-678-6075 (office)



MARKETING AGREEMENT 

 

This MARKETING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City 

of Hillsdale, Michigan (“City”), and Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. d/b/a Service 

Line Warranties of America (“Company”), herein collectively referred to singularly as “Party” 

and collectively as the “Parties”. This Agreement shall be effective on the last signature date set 

forth below (“Effective Date”). 

 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, sewer and water line laterals between the mainlines and the connection on 

residential private property are owned by individual residential property owners residing in the 

City (“Property Owner”); and 

WHEREAS, City desires to offer Property Owners the opportunity, but not the obligation, to 

purchase a service plan and other similar products set forth in Exhibit A or as otherwise agreed 

in writing from time-to-time by the Parties (each, a “Product” and collectively, the “Products”); 

and 

WHEREAS, Company, a subsidiary of HomeServe USA Corp., is the administrator of the 

National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program and has agreed to make the Products 

available to Property Owners subject to the terms and conditions contained herein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and for other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and with 

the intent to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Purpose.  City hereby grants to Company the right to offer and market the Products to 

Property Owners subject to the terms and conditions herein. 

2. City Obligations. 

A. Grant of License.  City hereby grants to Company a non-exclusive license (“License”) to use 

City's branding (“Marks”), on marketing materials in accordance with Exhibit A to be sent to 

Property Owners from time to time, and to be used in advertising (including on the Company’s 

website), all at Company's sole cost and expense and subject to City's prior review and approval, 

which will not be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld. Company's use of the Marks 

in accordance with this Agreement will not infringe any other party's rights. In the event that 

City extends a similar license to a competitor of Company during the Term and any Renewal 

Term of this Agreement, the City shall provide thirty (30) days’ notice prior to such grant of 

license and Company may immediately terminate this Agreement.  

  



B. Property Owner Data.  If City elects to do so, City may provide Company with Property 

Owner Data for use by Company in furtherance of the advertisement, marketing, and sale of the 

Products. Any name, service address, postal address, and any other appropriate or necessary data 

for Property Owners in City is defined as “Property Owner Data”. Property Owners Data shall 

be and remain City’s property. For any Property Owner Data provided by City to Company, City 

warrants that Property Owner Data has been and will be collected in compliance with all laws, 

statutes, treaties, rules, codes, ordinances, regulations, permits, official guidelines, judgments, 

orders and interpretations (“Applicable Laws”); and City is permitted by Applicable Laws and 

by any applicable privacy policy to provide Property Owner Data to Company and to permit 

Company to use Property Owner Data for the purposes of this Agreement. A Property Owner 

who has purchased a Product is a member (“Member”) and, following such purchase, all data in 

Company’s control or possession relating to Members is Company’s property. 

3. Term.  The term of this Agreement (“Initial Term”) shall be for three (3) years from the 

Effective Date. The Agreement will automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms (each 

a “Renewal Term”, and collectively with the Initial Term, the “Term”) unless one of the Parties 

gives the other written notice at least ninety (90) days prior to end of the Initial Term or of a 

Renewal Term that the Party does not intend to renew this Agreement. In the event that 

Company is in material breach of this Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement thirty 

(30) days after giving written notice to Company of such breach, if said breach is not cured 

during said thirty (30) day period. Company will be permitted to complete any marketing 

initiative initiated prior to termination of this Agreement after which time, neither Party will 

have any further obligations to the other and this Agreement will terminate. 

4. Consideration.  As consideration for such license, Company will pay to City a License Fee of 

as set forth in Exhibit A (“License Fee”) during the Term of this Agreement. The first payment 

shall be due by January 30th of the year following the conclusion of the first year of the Term. 

Succeeding License Fee payments shall be made on an annual basis throughout the Term, due 

and payable on January 30th of the succeeding year. City agrees to provide a completed Form 

W-9 to Company in order to facilitate proper payment of the License Fee. City will have the 

right, at its sole expense, to conduct an audit, upon reasonable notice and during normal business 

hours, of Company's books and records pertaining to any fees due under this Agreement while 

this Agreement is in effect and for one (1) year after any termination of this Agreement. 

5. Confidentiality.  Each party will treat all non-public, confidential and trade secret information 

received from the other party as confidential, and such party shall not disclose or use such 

information in a manner contrary to the purposes of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, the City shall not be liable for any disclosure of confidential information that is 

required to be disclosed under any applicable public records act or under court order. City shall 

provide notice to Company prior to any such disclosure. 

6. Code Change.  The Parties understand that the pricing of the Products and compensation 

provided for in this Agreement are based upon the currently applicable City, municipal or similar 

codes. In the event Company discovers a code change, Company shall have the ability to 

reassess the pricing of this Agreement. 



7. Indemnification.  Each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) hereby agrees to protect, 

indemnify, and hold the other Party, its officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, and 

agents (collectively or individually, “Indemnitee”) harmless from and against any and all third 

party claims, damages, losses, expenses, suits, actions, decrees, judgments, awards, reasonable 

attorneys' fees and court costs (individually or collectively, “Claim”), which an Indemnitee may 

suffer or which may be sought against or are recovered or obtainable from an Indemnitee, as a 

result of or arising out of any breach of this Agreement by the Indemnifying Party, or any 

negligent or fraudulent act or omission of the Indemnifying Party or its officers, employees, 

contractors, subcontractors, or agents in the performance of this Agreement; provided that the 

applicable Indemnitee notifies the Indemnifying Party of any such Claim within a time that does 

not prejudice the ability of the Indemnifying Party to defend against such Claim. Any Indemnitee 

hereunder may participate in its, his, or her own defense, but will be responsible for all costs 

incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees, in connection with such participation in such 

defense. 

8. Notice.  Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when 

notice is (i) received by the Party to whom it is directed by personal service, (ii) sent by 

electronic mail (provided confirmation of receipt is provided by the receiving Party), or (iii) 

deposited as registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with the United States Postal 

Service, addressed as follows: 

To:   City: 

            ATTN: Jeff Gier 

            City of Hillsdale 

            45 Monroe St. 

            Hillsdale, MI 49242           

Email: jgier@hillsdalebpu.com 

Phone: (517) 437-6412  

 

To:      Company: 

            ATTN: Chief Growth Officer 

            Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. 

            601 Merritt 7, 6th Floor 

            Norwalk, CT 06851 

            Phone: (866) 974-4801 

 

9. Modifications or Amendments/Entire Agreement.  Except for the list of available Products 

under the Agreement, which may be amended from time to time by the Parties in writing and 

without signature, any and all of the representations and obligations of the Parties are contained 

herein, and no modification, waiver or amendment of this Agreement or of any of its conditions 

or provisions shall be binding upon a Party unless in writing signed by that Party. 

 

10. Assignment.  Neither Party may assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Agreement 

without the prior written consent of the other Party unless such assignment or delegation is to an 

affiliate or to an acquirer of all or substantially all of the assets of the transferor. 



11. Counterparts/Electronic Delivery; No Third Party Beneficiary.  This Agreement may be 

executed in counterparts, all such counterparts will constitute the same contract and the signature 

of any Party to any counterpart will be deemed a signature to, and may be appended to, any other 

counterpart. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by email and upon receipt will be deemed 

originals and binding upon the Parties hereto, regardless of whether originals are delivered 

thereafter. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended, or should be construed, 

to confer upon or give any person or entity not a party to this agreement any third- party 

beneficiary rights, interests, or remedies under or by reason of any term, provision, condition, 

undertaking, warranty, representation, or agreement contained in this Agreement. 

12. Choice of Law/Attorney Fees.  The Parties shall maintain compliance with all Applicable 

Laws with respect to its obligations under this Agreement. The governing law shall be the laws 

of the State of Michigan, without regard to the choice of law principles of the forum state. THE 

PARTIES HERETO HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY, AND INTENTIONALLY 

WAIVE ANY RIGHT THAT MAY EXIST TO HAVE A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF 

ANY LITIGATION BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF, UNDER, OR IN ANY WAY 

CONNECTED WITH, THIS AGREEMENT. 

13. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  The above Recitals and Exhibit A attached hereto 

are incorporated by this reference and expressly made part of this Agreement. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first written below. 

 

CITY OF HILLSDALE 
 

 

______________________________   

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

  

UTILITY SERVICE PARTNERS PRIVATE LABEL, INC. 

 

______________________________ 

Name: Michael Backus 

Title: Chief Growth Officer 

Date: 

  



Exhibit A 

NLC Service Line Warranty Program 

City of Hillsdale 

Term Sheet 

January 04, 2024 

 

 

I. Initial Term. Three Years. 

 

II. License Fee. $0.50 per Product for each month that a Product is in force for a Property 

Owner (and for which payment is received by Company), aggregated and paid annually, 

for: 

A. Use of City logo and name on letterhead, advertising, signature line, and 

marketing materials. 

 

III. Products.  

A. External water service line plan (initially, $6.49 per month) 

B. External sewer/septic line plan (initially, $8.49 per month) 

C. Interior plumbing and drainage plan (initially, $9.99 per month) 

Pricing does not include taxes. Company may adjust the foregoing Product fees; 

provided, that any such monthly fee adjustment shall not exceed $0.50 in any 12-month 

period. If such adjustment shall exceed $0.50, both Parties must agree in writing.  

 

IV. Scope of Coverage. 

A. External water service line plan: 

i. Covers Property Owner responsibility: From the curbstop to the external 

wall of the home. 

ii. Covers thawing of frozen external water lines. 

iii. Covers well service lines if applicable. 

B. External sewer/septic line plan: 

i. Covers Property Owner responsibility: From the external wall of the home 

to the sewer main. 

ii. Covers septic lines if applicable. 

C. Interior plumbing and drainage plan: 

i. Covers water supply pipes and drainage pipes within the interior of the 

home. 

 

V. Marketing Campaigns. Company shall have the right to conduct up to three campaigns 

per year (each campaign consists of two mailings) and such other channels as may be 

mutually agreed. Initially, Company anticipates offering the interior plumbing and 

drainage plan Product via in-bound phone or web only. 





Water/Wastewater Report

Water/Wastewater Director Report 

Wastewater Collection and Treatment Report for December 2023 

•   Treated 31.375 million gallons of wastewater. 

•   Clean Barber St. lift station. 

•   Replace digester mixer gear reducer and motor. 

•   Replace south RAS pump. 

•   Met with Meijer and Hillsdale County to confirm certificate of occupancy for new store. 

•   Conference call with Tetra Tech on Barber lift station update.  Waiting on data from the College. 

•   Assist DPS with jetting storm sewer on Oak St. 

Water Distribution and Treatment Report for December 2023 

•   Treated 29.156 million gallons, sold 18.857 million gallons of water. 

•   Water loss last month at 24%. 

•   Staff donated their time to participate in light up parade. 

•   3 main breaks:  Grace/Lynwood, 185 Reading Ave, and River at Wolcott. 

•   16 LSL replacements completed, assist as needed. 

•   Assist Parrish Excavating on water main relocation on Oak St due to storm drain work. 

•   Inspect water and sewer installations on Hidden Meadows for new duplexes going in. 

•   Repair leaking service on Reading Ave. 



Water/Wastewater Report

Upcoming projects 

•   Concord Excavating to start valve replacements January 8th for CDBG.

•   General informational meeting January 10th for Westwood Street project. 

•   Continue verifying materials for service lines (interior only). 

•   Begin planning for LSL replacements for summer. 

Call Outs for December 2023 

•   One for sewer back up on customer side, one general alarm at WTP. 



Water Department Operational Report
FYE 2022

2021/2022 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

RawWater Pump(MG) 35.949 35.800 35.156 33.966 28.901 29.156 33.155 Avg. 34.593

Treated Water (MG) 29.878 30.525 30.122 28.418 25.259 24.731 28.156 Avg. 30.916

Max. Daily (MG) 1.670 1.357 1.500 1.613 0.994 0.950 1.347 Peak 1.831

Avg. Daily (MG) 0.964 0.985 1.004 0.917 0.842 0.798 0.918 Avg. 1.017

Backwash (MG) 3.828 2.605 1.883 1.465 1.396 1.602 2.130 Avg. 1.612

Water Sold (MG) 25.24 23.87 25.801 23.230 20.388 18.857 22.898 Avg. 21.195

% Treated Sold 84 78 86 82 81 76 81 Avg. 69.0

Water Loss % 16 22 14 18 19 24 19 31.0

Raw Iron (mg/l) 3.65 3.87 3.65 3.59 3.93 4.13 3.80 Avg. 3.71

Finished Iron (mg/l) 0.07 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.05 0.06 0.06 Avg. 0.09

SDWA Stand. (mg/l) 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 Avg.

% Removal 98 98 98 99 99 99 99 Avg. 98

Raw Mang. (mg/l) 0.25 0.28 0.28 0.27 0.30 0.29 0.28 Avg. 0.27

Finished Mang. (mg/l) 0.07 0.09 0.08 0.06 0.08 0.08 0.08 Avg. 0.06

SDWA Stand. (mg/l) 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 Avg.

% Removal 72 68 71 78 73 72 72 Avg. 78

Chlorine (lb/Mgal) 420.9 468.5 475.8 470.4 476.4 475.3 464.6 Avg. 502.8

Phosphate (lb/Mgal) 29.2 27.8 28.7 27.9 28.9 28.2 28.5 Avg. 37.0

Flouride (lb/Mgal) 10 13.4 13.2 13.4 14.5 14.5 13.2 Avg. 13.4

Pot. Perm. 343 336 325 326 324 306 326.7 Avg. 0.0



Wastewater Department Operations Report

2021/2022 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD % FYE 2022

Treated (MG) 26.849 29.348 27.532 29.882 28.575 31.375 28.92683 AVG 42.754

Max. Treated (MGD) 1.162 1.058 1.032 1.055 1.060 1.17 1.17 MAX 2.264

Avg. Treated (MGD) 0.895 0.947 0.918 0.964 0.953 0.110 0.797833 AVG 1.388

Precipitation (in) 5.76 2.44 3.17 3.64 1.10 1.76 17.87 TOTAL 48.38

Influent SS (mg/l) 211 196 200 209 212 167 199 AVG 138

Effluent SS (mg/l) 3.3 2.8 2.2 1.4 1.4 1.0 2.0 AVG 1.1

Permit SS (mg/l) 20 20 20 20 20 30

% Removal 98 99 99 99 99 99 99 AVG 99

Influent CBOD (mg/l) 137 141 142 156 140 168 147 AVG 106

Effluent CBOD (mg/l) 1.88 1.68 1.80 1.84 1.30 1.81 1.7 AVG 1.3

Permit CBOD (mg/l) 4 4 4 4 4 15

% Removal 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 AVG 99

Inf. Phosphourus (mg/l) 4.1 4.5 4.3 4.5 4.4 4 4.3 AVG 2.9

Eff. Phosphourus (mg/l) 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.7 0.8 0.3 0.70 AVG 0.72

Permit Phosphourus (mg/l) 1 1 1 1 1 1

% Removal 83 82 79 84 82 93 84 AVG 75

Influent Ammonia (mg/l) 19.6 21.5 25.1 25.1 22 18.6 22.0 AVG 14.1

Effluent Ammonia (mg/l) 0.05 0.04 0.05 0.04 0.02 0.06 0.0 AVG 0.04

Permit Ammonia (mg/l) 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 8.6

% Removal 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 AVG 100

Effluent Mercury (ng/l) 1.80 NA NA 1.40 NA NA 1.60 12 Mo. AVG 0.66

Permit Mercury (ng/l) 2 NA NA 2 NA NA

Sludge - Digest (MG) 0.236 0.224 0.209 0.253 0.228 0.307 1.457 AVG 2.922

Sludge - Land (MG) 0 0 0 0.855 0 0 0.855 TOTAL 0.936

Sludge - Dry Tons 0 0 0 62 0 0 62 TOTAL 78

Ferrous Chlor. (gal/Mgal) 35.7 47.4 55.2 34.0 61.2 18.0 41.9 AVG 29.2

CL2 (lb/Mgal) 20.5 24.5 20.3 20.1 27.3 27.7 23.4 AVG 19.6

SO2 (lb/Mgal) 10.1 10.5 7.8 9.5 9.4 10.00 9.6 AVG 5.8



Electric Utility Report 
 

 

Operations Report for December 2023 

 

 Safety meeting with AMP 

 Mow ROW Hudson RD in Pittsford 

 Run URD for cabins at shooting range and at the commons 

 URD on S Lk Wilson Rd. 

 Change batteries in substations 

 Install camera on city hall 

 Completed traffic signals and walk and waits at Howell St. and Bacon 

St. and also McCollum St. and N Howell St. 

 Vactor holes for poles on N West St. and on Marion St. 

 Remove 3 phase wire from new ball stadium for college to move new 

transformer to a different location 

 

Incident Report for December 2023  

 

 December had 8 outages 

 1 car vs. pole for I customer 

 4 outages effected 55 customers due to squirrels 

 1 caused by burned up jumper that caused 1 customer to lose power 

  2 limbs caused a loss of power 26 customers 

                                                                            

Production Report for December 2023 

 

 Monthly substation and building checks 

 Cleaned water jacket coolers on engine 5 

 Safety meeting with AMP 

 Replace contact switch engine 6 oil heater 

 Run engine 5 with UIS and Wheeler World to work on issue with shut 

down from natural gas to diesel 

 

                                                   Upcoming Field Projects 

 Replace poles on Marion and Ellen St for lift station project 

 Work on pole replacements around system 

 More URD coming up for Hillsdale College 



Electric Utility Report 
 

 Mow more ROW if and when ground conditions allow 

 

 

MSCPA Board Meeting 

 Coldwater Transmission Purchase Update  

 EGLE Response Plan  

 Energy & Capacity Discussion - (Closed session)  

                                                                     

 



1/4/24, 3:25 PM eReliability | Outage Pie Chart

https://reliability.publicpower.org/reports/causes-pie-chart/utility/292/?start_date=12%2F01%2F2023&end_date=12%2F31%2F2023&is_scheduled=un… 1/2

Causes Pie Chart Hillsdale Board of Public
Utilities

Start Date:



End Date:



Top-level Cause

Unscheduled

Substation:

-----

Circuit:

-----

Report on Outage:

Count

Duration

Customers Interrupted

Squirrel
50%

Tree
25%

Vehicle Accident
13%

Equipment Damage
13%

12/01/2023

12/31/2023



1/4/24, 3:25 PM eReliability | Outage Pie Chart

https://reliability.publicpower.org/reports/causes-pie-chart/utility/292/?start_date=12%2F01%2F2023&end_date=12%2F31%2F2023&is_scheduled=un… 2/2

Outage Cause Count

Squirrel 4

Tree 2

Vehicle Accident 1

Equipment Damage 1

Total 8



1/4/24, 3:26 PM eReliability | IEEE Statistics

https://reliability.publicpower.org/reports/ieee-statistics/utility/292/?start_date=12%2F01%2F2023&end_date=12%2F31%2F2023&remove_major_eve… 1/2

IEEE Statistics Report Hillsdale Board of Public
Utilities

Start Date



End Date



Remove Major Events?

Use APPA Event threshold

Top-level Cause

Unscheduled

Minimum event duration (in minutes)

Maximum event duration (in minutes)

Substation

-----

Circuit

-----

Exclude Loss of Supply 

-----
Failure of Greater Transmission
Loss of Generating Unit

12/01/2023

12/31/2023



1/4/24, 3:26 PM eReliability | IEEE Statistics

https://reliability.publicpower.org/reports/ieee-statistics/utility/292/?start_date=12%2F01%2F2023&end_date=12%2F31%2F2023&remove_major_eve… 2/2

IEEE Results

ASAI (percent) 99.9982%

CAIDI (minutes) 55.06

SAIDI (minutes) 0.754

SAIFI (number of interruptions) 0.0137

Range Results

Event Count 8

APPA Major Event Threshold (minutes) 22.868 



MICHIGAN SOUTH CENTRAL POWER AGENCY

168 DIVISION STREET INVOICE MONTH: November, 2023

COLDWATER, MICHIGAN 49036 INVOICE DATE: 12/15/2023

PHONE (517) 279-6961 DUE DATE: 12/29/2023

FAX (517) 279-6969 TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: $704,183.53

HILLSDALE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
45 MONROE STREET

HILLSDALE, MICHIGAN  49242

ATTN: DAVID MACKIE

MSCPA Member Power Billing - November, 2023

Total Power Charges: $619,611.63

Transmission / Capacity / Ancillary Services: $53,387.84

Total Other Charges: $4,737.10

Total Miscellaneous Charges: $26,446.97

TOTAL CHARGES $704,183.53

NOTE:  PLEASE SEE ENCLOSED BACKUP FOR ADDITIONAL DETAIL

* Any amounts due and not paid by the due date shall bear interest at the rate of 1% per month until paid

Notes:



FOR THE MONTH OF: November, 2023 Total Metered Load kWh: 9,437,224

TIME OF AGENCY PEAK: 11/28/2023 @ H.E. 11:00 AGENCY PEAK kW: 133,907

MEMBER SHARE OF AGENCY PEAK kW: 17,786

TIME OF MUNICIPAL PEAK: 11/28/2023 @ H.E. 11:00 MUNICIPAL PEAK kW: 17,786

TIME OF TRANSMISSION PEAK (CONS) 11/27/2023 HE 14 AGENCY TRANSMISSION PEAK kW (INC. LOSSES): 134,553

MEMBER SHARE OF TRANS PEAK kW (INC. LOSSES): 17,992

Hillsdale Resources

Menominee Hydro

Energy Charge: $0.049000 / kWh * 444,583 kWh   = $21,784.58

Demand Charge $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $516.64

Subtotal $0.050162 / kWh * 444,583 kWh  = $22,301.22

Oconto Falls Hydro

Energy Charge: $0.048000 / kWh * 247,369 kWh   = $11,873.73

Demand Charge $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $213.44

Subtotal $0.048863 / kWh * 247,369 kWh  = $12,087.17

AMP Hydro CSW

Demand Charge: $4.116148 / kW * 3,398 kW   = $13,986.67

Energy Charge: -$0.003781 / kWh * 1,679,915 kWh   = -$6,351.79

Capacity Credit: $0.987501 / kW * -3,398 kW   = -$3,355.53

REC Credit (Estimate) $0.000000 / 0 0 0 -$17,622.31

Debt Service $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $200,959.63

Rate Levelization $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $14,327.78

Subtotal $0.120211 / kWh * 1,679,915 kWh  = $201,944.45

AMP Fremont Energy Center

Demand Charge: $4.509436 / kW * 9,519 kW   = $42,923.31

Capacity Credit: $1.038942 / kW * -9,519 kW   = -$9,889.23

Debt Service $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $46,791.74

Energy Adj for Prior Month $0.000000 / 0 0 0 -$526.57

Subtotal #DIV/0! / kWh * 0 kWh  = $79,299.25

Meldahl Hydro

Demand Charge: $5.127332 / kW * 731 kW   = $3,748.08

Energy Charge: $0.001352 / kWh * 316,366 kWh   = $427.58

Capacity Credit: $0.575458 / kW * -731 kW   = -$420.66

REC Credit (Estimate) $0.000000 / 0 0 0 -$1,898.20

Debt Service $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $25,425.23

Rate Levelization $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $1,463.28

Subtotal $0.090861 / kWh * 316,366 kWh  = $28,745.32

Settlement of Meldahl Hydro at Meldahl Bus LMP (PJM)

Energy Charge: $0.031230 / kWh * -316,366 kWh   = -$9,880.17

Subtotal $0.031230 / kWh * -316,366 kWh  = -$9,880.17

Greenup Hydro

Demand Charge: $7.778559 / kW * 479 kW   = $3,725.93

Energy Charge: $0.002162 / kWh * 255,418 kWh   = $552.11

Capacity Credit: $0.620188 / kW * -479 kW   = -$297.07

REC Credit (Estimate) $0.000000 / 0 0 0 -$1,532.51

Debt Service $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $9,883.24

Rate Levelization $0.000000 / 0 0 0 $1,394.13

Subtotal $0.053739 / kWh * 255,418 kWh  = $13,725.82

Settlement of Greenup Hydro at Greenup Bus LMP (PJM)

Energy Charge: $0.031755 / kWh * -255,418 kWh   = -$8,110.84

Subtotal $0.031755 / kWh * -255,418 kWh  = -$8,110.84

Municipal Owned Generation - Diesel (Scheduled)

Demand Charge: $0.000000 / kW * 0 kW $0.00

Subtotal $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh  = $0.00

Less Municipal Owned Generation (Scheduled)

Energy Charge: $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh $0.00

Subtotal $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh  = $0.00

Plus Actual Municipal Generation

Energy Charge: $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh $0.00

Subtotal $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh  = $0.00

Generation Deviation from Schedule (RT Sale)

Energy Charge: $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh $0.00

Subtotal $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh  = $0.00

Generation Deviation from Schedule (RT Purch)

Energy Charge: $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh $0.00

Subtotal $0.000000 / kWh * 0 kWh  = $0.00

MISO Market  Power

On Peak Energy Charge: (M-F HE 08-23 EDT) $0.042677 / kWh * 3,895,511 kWh  = $166,248.99

Off Peak Energy Charge: $0.035727 / kWh * 3,169,845 kWh  = $113,250.42
Subtotal $0.039559 / kWh * 7,065,356 kWh  = $279,499.41

Total Demand Charges: $50,421.50

Total Energy Charges: $569,190.13

Total Power Charges: 9,437,223.76             kWh $619,611.63

TRANSMISSION / CAPACITY / ANCILLARY SERVICES:

DETAIL INFORMATION OF POWER CHARGES - November, 2023

Hillsdale



DETAIL INFORMATION OF POWER CHARGES - November, 2023

Hillsdale

MISO Transmission Charges (breakdown attached) $6,380.51

MISO Capacity Charges (breakdown attached) $43,336.96

$3,670.37

$53,387.84

OTHER CHARGES:

AMP Dispatch Center Charges: $0.000121 / kWh * 9,437,224 kWh  = $1,141.45

AMP Service Fee Part A,

Based on Annual Municipal Sales $0.000229 / kWh * 119,982,000                 kWh 1/12 = $2,289.66

AMP Service Fee Part B,

Energy Purchases $0.000580  /kWh  * 2,251,699 kWh  = $1,305.99

TOTAL OTHER CHARGES: $4,737.10

MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES:

MSCPA Administration Charges (breakdown attached) $11,293.29

$15,153.68
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES: $26,446.97

GRAND TOTAL POWER INVOICE: $0.07462  /kWh * 9,437,224 kWh  = $704,183.53

TRANSMISSION / CAPACITY / ANCILLARY SERVICES TOTAL:

MISO ancillary services, ARRs and FTRs (breakdown attached)

Hillsdale ESPP 2023-2025 obligation @ $1.400 /MWh x 129,888.7 MWh / 12









THE TOLEDO EDISON COMPANY
QENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Tol€do Edison C0mpany (Tolsdo Edlson') ard Palty aqroo tho l.m6 qrrd
conr.liLion6 heroln 0ro hcorporalod l^to the Contrac ng Sorvlogs A0re6monldntod
DEcsmbor ,, 20i0 ,nd lo08 h€, \rllh nll r6ls/.ncod auachmeflts and Exhtbtt A,
lncludlno co/6r,€tlor and poposal dalod, D6c.n!b!r l, 20rg sball6onsNute the
comdelo snd linal aq.aEmsDt ( AgreBmBnrl b€twsen lre Priios rsga.dlng ths
subl.ol m{lt€i horr,ft Bupsrd€dlrg all oho. agrsemonts wttton o. oial, Thoso
l6rm8 ald condlllons may rol bo modlll€d hBr6ansr oxcepl by $rrllran agre€ment
otTol6do Edhoo end Party.

l, lllgtL "Wo.lL l0 dGlio€d h€ro,n .s sol loih In 56r onI oron ExNbit
A, whlch ls hcolpo.aled h6@iB by rer€rence

2, Bllllno ,r!d P^vfi.nl, Tolodo Edtaofi '*,lllhvohs Pany 16r th6 Wo*
p$romed plr6uBnt to thl6 Agroomeni, Ioled6 Edtroi ntull roo€lvs
paym6nl on or boloro lh6 duo datr as lndlcatod on lhs lnvo,cB.
Fallura ro crmply wlur th€ss psymenl torme vfll result tn an
oas€ssmonl ol Inlaresl. koo th6 dlro dat6Indtcatedon thE tnvatc€, at
ons and ons.hall parc€nt (1'196) p.r monlh oa the mextn jm rats ot
Irlor€sl sllowablo by hw. Party wll lncur a c1argo as psrmllled for
ary clte* iElurn€d {or noa-sufrlclsnr lund!. Prty vrlll bo aorponstblo
,o. 6ll co6l6 a$oclal6d r,UlI aollaollon ollorts sholld iho accout
becomepEEtd!s.
Tolsdo Edison hs6 rho optlon to lnvolca pafly tor lat or, equtpmonl,
eld nalorlrl8 as cosh aroindJ(ed by Tolddo Fdlson.

3, w6r6nlv, For a parlod o, ons hudred elqhry (tpo) days t.om Urc
daro ol th6 crdrad, _olsdo 

E{lson agre68 to ,omody by ,epalr,
r6plac.monl, or,6[rind 0l lls sol6 opllon, th6lsrlur. otsqulment 6nd
malsrlab yrhlch Ls caus€d by dolscls tn v/orkfllnshp ot folorto
Edlson, EXCEPT A€ STAIEO A8OVE, TOI.EDO ED,6ON
EXPRESSLY EXCLUOES, AND pABly HenEEy WA{VES. At{y
AND ALL WAFFAITIIES. EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. INCLUOINO
WTTHOUT LIMITATION, WAERANIIES OF MENOHANTABILITY
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTIOUTAA PUBPOSE ANO ANY
WANBANIIES ANIsINO FROM ANY COUR8E OF DEALII.IO OR
USAGE OF T8AOE. Compon€nt psrle ard acc$sodes
monuLclur€d by olh€rs aro not covsr6d by lhls warmnty, and ars
sutrscl onry lo the odolnal manu,acturc!'s rd enry, any. 

'

4. nolatlonahlp o, P6rtlos, Exc€pl as otts,l,rso oxDtosslv orovtdsd In
thl3 Aoteomonl, T.ledd Edb.n wll pErlorr'lhe tivirrk as an
lndspsnd8nl conlraclor, Nothlng ln lhls Agr6on6nl or Jn lhe
parlormonco ol tho Work by Totodo E.nson aha! be constr,lod lo
.rbate (o) d padnershlF, lolni vdnlr,o or othar lol,lt bus,osss
arla gomsnl bslw$n Toledo Edleon and 61,rlo.n€i ot any ol lhot
aflillats, (b)eny llduclary ddtyo$Bd by lotedo Edluon to Custom€r
.r6nyoljls Blflliales, or (o) a rBlallon6hlp ot onptoyor and smployde
b6lw6en lha parlles,

6- fnd€nr.'ll,o1lo'rr Party agr€ss lor llistl, Is successor6 and asslgns,
lo lndemnlly, del6nd, and ftold h6rn .ss Totedo Edlson.- i6
succ$ors, subsldhiloe, Bnd allllldtss, and lho:r r€spocllvs €,g;n16,
omp,oy6es, 6ucce6sors, a6sl0ns, sho lnd€mnllees (aolecu.v€lv. ft;
'lnd.nu{ll€d P€rsons'l lion all datms, domands, d;rnogss, bCsos,
Judg8monts, Ecllons ot causos of a.ttons. cosls Or emenses,
(ncludno v,ilhoul llrnJtolion, atlorn€ys' fsos 6nd ltu(Iatton 6x;€nre^i
tLoss6s') \{hrch any or ths tnaemnlneU easons niy sur{erir tno.ri
arislng our ol, 6r ln any $6y retated to tlB workp€rttmad by Tolodo
Edlson under thh Agr6om€nt, excopt to th; odent t,lhlst€d o.
proxhtalsly oaused byth€ negllgerue orw tu' mlsconduct ot any of
rl"e lnd.m.lllod P6r6o s, Pa y, tor tkelt, [B 6uccoslor$ ;rd
aesl!n!, horsbysxproEs& Rgroo. to watus {but ontv fo/ lhB nurroseol thls lndsmnlly provtston) any prot/kton oi any iro,i6rs,
compensatlon acl or othsr sldhr laiv wh€rebv panycoJld Dr€nluda
lt6 loLdor by Tol0do Edl.on es an addtlton;t dot;ndanl br svold
llablfry lor damsges, contdbutlon. or tndomntry tn any teilat ao on
wfisro Part/$ employso or oriFtoylog, holrs, acrlqn!, d anvone
olhBr',vlo6 edllhd lo ro.6fu€ damagos by rEasoD o{ hrury or iioah
brlngsan s0 on al liw sgalnst any ,ndsnn t€d parly.
ll lha Pady ls a G6n6.at Contr6ator, ltr6p,6s€nrs;nd waxar s to
Tolsdo Edlson lhrl It hes holdrnrlsslolt lo po/o,m th6 sD6cl c v/ork
d6Gcdbod ln lhls AgrcBmont and lhal tt ts tho arlhodzsd;oBnl ot ths
ownor wlh auftortty h onler Into thls Agre€mdnt, NoMih6tsndtno
lh6 lor€golng, Toledo Edtson !h0ll havo no reslonsib[ftv lo rn;
O$rur, Ihe Gonoral Contractor, q any rtrld pairtes lt ttie Work
scop6 B6 daflnod by ths conorst Con[aolo, vl0laloe ,ho d0ht6 ot or
causos dalnas6 10 any thhd pffly o. 06ve/flmdnt aulho,try.

6. LlnJlaUgn 9,, Llabllltv. Noith6r Tokdo Edlson, [s !(]jtalod
cornprnl6s. h! sibcoikactors, nor ,B 6mptoy6a! sh;[ bo tlabts ,or
loss ol snlkjpaled proll& lo0e by r6ason oi or6nl or other lac ttv
6huldown, non-opErallon or lndo8!ed oxp€nse ol ololailon, 6€ryb;
Inlonl,pllon, clolnl0 ol porly or l!6 dlslorners, subcantractors,
vardors or ELrppl.,s, cosl ol no{By, loss ot i66 ot oaDllat oi
relonuo srl6lfl0 orrl ot Totedo Edtoon,s v?ork or out oi or tn

10,

11,

12,

13,

14.

i5.

J6,

corno6Ion $dlh FE t s u6e, or lnsbllty Io use, th6 lq.ilt ss, o,Iot
sny- sp6clal, incldBnlal or conscqrontlsl domogss o, any naturo,
arl6ln€ aleny Ulm€ oi ftom any cauae whalso6v6r.

!9lq!-.r!&rg!t9. Nolthor pady sia! b€ taLr€ ro rh6 olh6r ,or any
6xp6ru€q lors or dsinsgo r66UUnS kom delays or pr6venflo, dt
porromrsnco srlslflg kom cau3os beyrnd lk ,e66oi1abl6 conkol
causad lro, llood. accldont, st&e, cl!4i corynouon. 0ov6hm.nral
o, mltlary authorlly. lnsur/€o,lon, rlols, smbargoos, unavotdabl€
dchyr ln r/ansportErlon, acls ol Ood, or publtosnemy.

lnoreEslEoress, Tho dqhl o, horess or esr63s lo the Site or lh6
locallor ol lha wo* ls horelo granted by Perly and ovrno, to'Ioledo
Edlso'l lo, rho purpoGe ol porlorfiIng tho wo,k corlohplat€d by th,s

Asald6nrenl. Ttus Agrs6mentshali bo blfijlng upon and ]ruro toih6
benollt ol ths Fsrti€E h8raol, rh6lr 6uoc6srors End asst{ns. pany,
howBv6., €hall nol d6dl0n to any oth6r porson or aldcJallon n;i
a,/lflated wllh Pa(y any i0hL or pdrtso€s h6r6by g.onl€d, or
auhorho any po{sor or assoctallon not aflitlalod with psrty fi6
6x€rch6 ol any rlghls or pdvllogB h€r€tn provtde.j tor, wi lori tho
Mtlor con6onl ol Toledo Edlson.

c9$d!&$4!l-tsq. I olodo Edlso ahd Pady v/[ conply nlrh alt
spdicablo Fedaral, Slalo, and Lmlslatrlss, o,ii1alca, rutes, a1d
16$rhllonB,

Sobconka0thfl. Toledo Edrson may subcontract lor lho
porfoamanc6 ol 3ny o, lls obloattors under thlo A0r6ofi6nt. The
P3rly rep6s6^ts Utal lhell ond,lor ltro O$,n6r ts noi slhlect to Env
ag{66,'nsn16 conratnln[ anylo]n otunton ludsdlcuofal w;k dtustoi
provislons lhal mllo In any way delay or pravant Tolsdo Edtson or
lB sLbconlraclors lrom podorrnhg thswor,ithalls th6 suhlscttnelter
ollhk adr66m6nl. lf any su.h osrsgmsnls 6,(tst tbsn piny and/or
Ol,l,nor siall €lrhsr, at tho slocllon otToledo Fdteon, t d6mn y t or
trly lossos or coEls rssuldno liom tl)a ssmo, or Frovu6 iotado
Edlson lhe bonsfilol116 bersalo.

I!,n.Walvel. fto.la,lure ol €lth6, plrry to tnstst or ohtorce tn any
Irslenco 3lrlcl podomanos ol ah/ ot (ho lordr€ horoolor lo oxotcls;
any ol I(s ,lshrs h6r€ln shrll nd be consl,ued as 6 ! v€r or
rs{Jnqulshlronl to any 6)d6nt ot tls dghlB to as66rl or roty upln surh
on 8ny lulurs occa$i6n.

Applloablo Lqw an{t,lurtidtctton, Thts Ao(€ement shell bo
govornBd ln s'l rosp€cts by tt6 tav6 ot itro St&l€ ot Ohto snd oniy
lhs Courld uf ohlo, or FcddrolCourts In Ohlosho hava ludsdtclton,-

Porllos ln lflorast. Nothlq t^ thts Agre6ment ts Intendod to co0lor
erv d0hls or rslnedes t}l&r or by r€sson olthh Aoreomonlon anv
persons olisr lhan th6 P6r 6s her6to, nor lB aryttrtng ln ttti
Agromsnl_ lntord€d lo r€llsv6 or dtsda,gs Ure iUttgarlons or
llabll €s o, any tlrrd psrson or gfuo any hl;d psrson e;y 4ght ol
subrogEllon or aollon ovo, or dgarost anypafly h;rolo,

eslldldlAllu. Pany v?lll flqlnlaln lle conildonilalily ot all
dravl,1gs, specilicallons prolidsd by Tolcdo Edlson u;rd€r thls
Agre€menl f'Conluonflal Intormao;,,). Contrdor {rl totormauon
may b0 d {cbsed only tolhose person6rl,ttD nssd lo know, and only
Io lis orlolt nac€s3ary, ln ord.r lo carry out tho t€In)s ot thl;
Agi€emefll. Conlld8ntl3l lrlormarlon may 1e1 56 u6.6 1, .., wa,
hol sp€cinoally 3llowsd undor [$ Ag€em€nt, ratrettre, oit noi
conp.Illvo uith Ih€ oth6r party, olhsr than 6s provided hsreh, Fdr
purpo363 ol ll'& Agrosmont, Confldenttsl lritormatlon doea noi
Inctudo lnlorflarlon $,hlch O t6 orbecm€s gone rau/ avsl abts Io lhe
prrblc v/tl.ort tho lauh ot oml6sloo ot ths partyi 0t);as knorn to ih6
Pany prror. to ltts ,ksl dlsctosur6 by Tolsdo Edtson, or ls
hdEpend€nfly d6v€loped by the Ows€r; ([) was recervej uy ltro
Own€r wlhout rosklctlors as to llr uss,rom a lHrd Banv $i6 ts
lawlully lr possosston and not rest4orodqs to 0teuee hlradt: oi. ttvi
was lndopen&nUy d€v€toped by lho Ownar thro.rgh p€reons i\i\i
havo nol.had, s,lher dlreclly or l;dk6clty, acc€6s to-or inola{odgo;i
6tnllar Inlormallon pro{ded by Tolado EdsorL

Tar8l,lna on,ll lhb Agr66mon s {ora t6m tooger ranInonths.tt
may bs l€tr nst6d by et 16r pady at any mtupoo on6 h6&ed
twenly (120) dsys \.irt0n nollco. Ary co dcl coDmlh6n{6,
umbsorb8d @Eh and costs as6octatsd wIh lebor, aqutpmsnt and
nale{hh roaizod bylolodo Eols6n h anrrdpauon;r h; tompt€lton
ol.Utb A€r6om0nl Bhall be pald la Iu hy pany qron talmtr;lton ot
fils A0rE€ment.

7

8.

L

10120
REVMAY 2OOS Conl(acling S€rvlces Agrcom.nt Bx t tAlndB 2ot8

i
I

I

i

I

I














	Electric
	Sewer
	Water
	Water
	Wastewater

